
 

 

Copeland Borough Council 
The Market Hall 
Market Place 
Whitehaven 
CA28 7JG  

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
 

Venue: The Atrium, The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, 
Whitehaven. CA28 7SJ  

Date:   Thursday, 8th July, 2021 
Time:   2.00 pm 
Contact Officer: Rose Blaney  Tel: 07385 362773 

 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items:   

  
To receive declarations by Members and/ or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or 
other registrable interests which have not already been declared in the 
Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a 
disclosable pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).  
 
Members are advised however, in the interests of clarity and transparency, 
to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as any 
other interests.  
 
Members are reminded that they may not, by law, participate or vote in 
any discussion in a meeting on a matter in which they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest  
 
Members are advised that they should leave the room during consideration 
of any items of business in which they have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest. 
 

 

 

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 10 June 2021  1 - 8 

4. Executive Forward Plan  9 - 14 

5. Update from Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee   

Public Document Pack



 

 

6. Update from the Single Table Trade Union Group (STTUG) representative   

7. Corporate Performance Report for Quarter 4 2020-21  15 - 50 

8. Housing Complaints Guidance  51 - 56 

9. DFG Discretionary Payments Presentation  57 - 62 

10. Recycling Task & Finish Group Report  63 - 88 

11. Scrutiny Officer Updates  89 - 96 

12. Date and Time of Next Meeting:   

 The next meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be held on 
Thursday 5th August 2021 at 2:00pm in The Atrium, The Copeland Centre, 
Catherine Street, Whitehaven. 

 

 

 

 
Membership: Councillors John Kane (Chair), Felicity Wilson (Deputy Chair), 
James Date, Gemma Dinsdale, Gwynneth Everett, JosephGhayouba, 
Charles Maudling, Sam Meteer, Sam Pollen, Peter Tyson and Doug Wilson 

 
Contacts:  Direct Dial: 07385 362773 
   E-mail: Rose.Blaney@copeland.gov.uk 
   Website: www.copeland.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON THURSDAY, 10 JUNE 2021 
 

Present: Councillors John Kane, in the Chair; Felicity Wilson, James Date, 
Gwynneth Everett, Joseph Ghayouba, Charles Maudling, Sam Meteer, 
Sam Pollen, Peter Tyson and Doug Wilson 
 
Officers: Sarah Pemberton (Director of Corporate Services and Commercial 
Strategy (Monitoring Officer)), Amanda Starr (Strategic Housing and Social 
Inclusion Manager), Stephanie Shaw (Electoral and Democratic Services 
Manager) and Rose Blaney (Scrutiny Officer). 
 
 

OSC 21/1 Apologies for Absence  
 
No apologies for absence were received. 
 

OSC 21/2 Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items:  
 
No Declarations of Interest were made. 
 

OSC 21/3 Minutes of the meeting held on 15 April 2021  
 
Councillors reviewed the minutes of the previous Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (OSC) meeting. 
 
The Scrutiny Officer confirmed to members that going forward the Mayor will be 
invited to attend future meetings should the Director of Financial resources be 
unavailable, as noted on pages five and six of the agenda pack. 
 
Councillor Felicity Wilson seconded the proposal to agree the minutes as a true 
and accurate record. 
 
Resolved – That, with seven votes for and three abstentions, the Committee 
agreed that the minutes of the meeting held on 15th April 2021 were approved 
as a true and accurate record. 
 

OSC 21/4 Executive Forward Plan  
 

The Committee reviewed the Executive Forward Plan. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Councillor Sam Meteer highlighted the recent publication by the Boundary 
Commission of a Boundary Review 2023 for Copeland. He asked that the 
Scrutiny Committee become involved in the review process. The Democratic 
Services Manager commented that the Electoral Review Panel have the 
responsibility to formulate a response to Boundary Reviews and that is the panel 
where the Boundary Review will be discussed which is currently within the initial 
stages of an eight week consultation. They also highlighted the importance of 
waiting a little while before formulating the response until the outcome of Local 
Government Re-Organisation (LGR) is known. That outcome is expected within 
the next few weeks allowing time for a Boundary Review response. Councillor 
Meteer highlighted his concern regarding the timescale but it was noted by the 
Democratic Services Manager that this is only the initial consultation (which is 
open to all members of the public), there will still be time for members to have 
their say. 

Councillor Sam Pollen asked about the Constitution and wanted clarification on 
what the decision was at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) regarding the 
Constitution coming to OSC. He also like for clarification as to whether the 
Budget Monitoring Working Group had been re-established. The Director of 
Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy reminded councillors that at the 
AGM it was agreed that dealing with the Constitution was within the Standard 
and Ethics Committee (SEC) terms of reference and that at the next SEC 
meeting, scheduled for 17th June 2021, they would decide how the Constitution 
would be dealt with. Options for this would include a working group and/or 
sending it to OSC. The Scrutiny Officer confirmed that there is a Budget 
Monitoring Working Group which has been established, but that it is different to 
the previous working group. The current working group will create a report for 
OSC to then decide whether they need to make further recommendations to the 
Executive or believe that the Budget is on track. 

Resolved – That with a unanimous vote for the Committee agreed that the 
Executive Forward Plan be noted.  
 

OSC 21/5 Update from Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee  
 
The Chair updated members that there hadn’t been a meeting of the Committee 
in a while, but noted that the Cumbria Health & Scrutiny Committee Chair had 
recently changed. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



OSC 21/6 Update from the Single Table Trade Union Group (STTUG) 
representative  
 
Councillor Pollen updated members on the topics discussed at the last STTUG 
meeting in May 2021. It was noted that the Confidential Reporting Policy and 
the New Management Structure would be going to Full Council. 
 
Waste and recycling staffing was given an update, including new staff being 
brought on and seasonal staff. A Covid update was given, noting that; staff were 
working from home where possible, face to face meetings had now begun, there 
were no members of staff in isolation, all staff who had been put on furlough 
had now returned to work and Lateral Flow Testing was still ongoing and 
available to staff. The Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy, 
who was in attendance as the Chief Executive was unavailable, commented that 
the long term aims with an emphasis on staff wellbeing and a flexible approach 
to support. The HR manager also gave a Health & Safety update which included 
mental health and first aid training, as well as notification of a tractor issue that 
was being resolved. Devolution was also discussed, including stress and anxiety 
of staff, but noting that there was currently no new update. Another point 
discussed was recruitment, including vacancies and new starters. 
Communications was also a topic discussed. 
 
Councillor Pollen also highlighted, for new members, the description of the 
representative role on STTUG which is to provide transparency to OSC. He 
welcomed any member who wished to take over the role, but was happy to 
remain as the representative. The Chair believed that, for consistency, it would 
be beneficial for Councillor Pollen to remain as the representative on STTUG. 
 

OSC 21/7 Citizens Advice Review of 2020 Service Delivery Presentation  
 

The Strategic Housing and Social Inclusion Manager gave an introduction on the 
reason for bringing the presentation to OSC before introducing the Chief Officer 
of Citizens Advice. 

Shelley Hewitson, Chief Officer of Citizens Advice Bureau for Copeland gave a 
presentation to OSC on what work the Citizens Advice Bureau do and what they 
have been doing during the pandemic. Giving OSC a complete overview and 
review of their service delivery in 2020. The Chief Officer also gave OSC some 
ideas of what they plan to do going forward in 2021 before opening the floor to 
questions. 

Councillor Peter Tyson asked about how much involvement there was between 
Citizens Advice and those they have referred to or have been referred from the 

Page 3



Credit Union. He also highlighted to councillors that the Credit Union isn’t just 
for loans but they also provide advice, funeral cover and look at young person 
savings. The Chief Officer highlighted that Citizens Advice work closely with the 
Credit Union on all aspects, whether they have needed to refer someone or 
someone has been referred to them. And they also work on projects with the 
Credit Union around scams, illegal money lending, loan sharks and work with 
schools, alongside other projects. 

Councillor Felicity Wilson asked if there was a facility to use repurposed 
household goods. The Strategic Housing and Social Inclusion Manager answered 
that there is currently a working relationship with the British Heart Foundation 
and Cumbria Recycling (white goods). The Manager also highlighted that there 
was a project in the works that would look into this matter but as it was in the 
beginning stages it is commercially sensitive. But did confirm that councillors 
would be kept up to date on the progress of the project. The Director of 
Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy also noted that there was a pilot 
done months ago on this issue, with an aim to reduce landfill, but there was still 
a lot of work to do. 

Councillor Doug Wilson asked if the presentation given was available to be sent 
out to councillors following the meeting and offered further support to Citizens 
Advice believing it to be one of the best causes to support. The Scrutiny Officer 
confirmed that they would send the presentation to members following the 
meeting. 

Councillor Charles Maudling asked if there was a system in place to report Loan 
Sharks. The Chief Officer informed members that there is a system in place, 
however, those who have been effected are usually too scared to come forward. 
And without the information and cooperation with those effected, the system 
does not work. Citizens Advice are working to promote financial inclusion and 
other ways for people to access loans and are also looking to promote advice for 
more people to avoid getting into issues with loan sharks through leafleting. 

Councillor Sam Pollen thanked the Chief Officer of Citizens Advice for the 
presentation. He also asked; what is being done around Universal Credit, what 
can councillors do to support Citizens Advice further and what funding is being 
supplied via the nuclear industry? Councillor Pollen also asked for the Chair to 
organise a meeting with the Mayor, the Chief Officer of Citizens Advice and the 
Strategic Housing and Social Inclusion Manager to look into further funding for 
Citizens Advice and what more Copeland could do to offer support. The Strategic 
Housing and Social Inclusion Manager informed members that Citizens Advice 
and Copeland Borough Council (CBC) are keeping their eye on the Universal 
Credit issue and are putting plans in place to deal with those issues. The Chief 
Officer agreed to send councillors further information regarding the current and 
upcoming campaign details. They also asked if councillors could send them any 

Page 4



client stories that they are informed about, as hearing stories similar to their 
own can encourage people to come forward and seek help and support. 
Regarding funding, Citizens Advice receive £32,000 (up £12% from last year) 
from CBC which is partially funded through Sellafield Social Impact funding. 
There are a lot of support grant applications being processed by Citizens Advice. 
There are multiple pockets of grants from Sellafield which include the 
Transforming West Cumbria funding. 

Councillor Pollen also asked how the council and councillors can help support 
Citizens Advice more than they currently do. The Chief Officer informed 
members that they can help by distributing the ‘Help & Support’ leaflets from 
Citizens Advice, of which more can be sent to councillors to help facilitate this. 
They also mentioned that if councillors could share Citizen Advice’s social media 
posts that would be of great help. Financial support is always welcome and they 
also asked that, as their current lease is coming to an end, helping Citizens 
Advice to find a new premise would be greatly appreciated, even looking into 
office availability via CBC. 

Councillor Joseph Ghayouba noted that he was thankful for all the hard work 
that Citizens Advice do. He asked why Citizens Advice were looking to move 
location, such as whether the current lease was too much. He also asked what 
was being done to help those who might be slipping through the cracks, such as 
refugees who don’t speak English. The Chief Officer informed members that the 
current locations, while suitable then they initially moved in, had now become 
unsuitable, especially for those who are not able bodied. They also agreed to 
work with Councillor Ghayouba for those who struggle to speak English and 
improve on how Citizens Advice can help them. They currently work with 
language line but more work needs done to make that information available and 
promote working together. 

Councillor Ghayouba also asked for information regarding renters and private 
landlords. The Chief Officer agreed to send further information regarding the 
figures for renters with private landlords. The Chief Officer also informed 
members that they are looking to get those who may be evicted to come to 
Citizens Advice when they are first informed rather than at the last minutes, and 
they are hoping to get the word out about this issue. Regarding potential 
evictions, the Housing Officer for CBC is aware of issue, and knowns that it’s 
coming, and is working to increase temporary housing and developing a pot to 
help with that. The concept is to attempt to return people to pre-Covid levels. 

Councillor Ghayouba noted, as per the previous discussion, that upcycling is a 
great idea but wondered if Sellafield were involved. The Chief Officer informed 
members that Citizens Advice currently use a local trader for white goods but 
the Strategic Housing and Social Inclusion Manager made a note of what 

Page 5



Sellafield may be able to offer and agreed to look into the matter further with 
their current contact through the social impact project.  

Councillor Felicity Wilson highlighted the current Integrated Care Community 
(ICC) in partnership with CBC and Cumbria County Council (CCC) event which is 
taking place in Millom - “Choice Is Yours” – and noted that it could be brought to 
the rest of the Borough if requested. 

 
OSC 21/8 Outside Bodies Annual Report 2020-21  

 

The Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy gave an overview of 
the Outside Bodies Annual Report 2020-21. The main point she highlighted was 
that, despite the pandemic, there was an increase in the number of reports 
returned by councillors which was really positive. The Director also noted that 
there were no recommendations within the report to stop 

Councillor Meter commended Councillors Eileen Weir and Sam Pollen for their 
respective and comprehensive reports. He also noted some minor error within 
one of the reports regarding spelling. Councillor Meteer also requested that 
going forward, more diligence may be needed in regards to the ‘Key Outcomes’ 
section of the reports, as they current include details of what happened and 
what the Outside Body does, rather than the key outcomes themselves. 

The Scrutiny Officer took this opportunity to thank members for their 
participation in returning their forms  

Resolved – That, 

a) With a unanimous vote for, the Outside Bodies Annual Report 2020-21 is 
agreed and will go ahead to Full Council on Tuesday 22nd June 2021. 

b) The Scrutiny Officer agreed to review the Outside Bodies Annual Report 
forms that are sent out so that they are clear to promote correct 
reporting. 

 
OSC 21/9 Annual Scrutiny Report 2020-21  

 

The Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy gave a brief 
overview of the Annual Scrutiny Report 2020-21. The key point of the report was 
to note that, while the pandemic had an impact of what OSC could achieve in 
2020-21, the report shows that there is a lot of good work coming up including 
task and finish groups. 

Councillor Pollen noted that there was a lack of recommendations and call-ins 
throughout the year and that was a failure of OSC and would need to be 

Page 6



improved going forward. He also agreed with the comments made within the 
Chair’s Foreword and the Next Steps within the report. Councillor Pollen then 
took the opportunity to note, that while referenced within the report, to 
highlight the concerns that Egremont residents still have regarding the lack of 
similar opportunities for funding. It was noted by the Director of Corporate 
Services and Commercial Strategy that the towns for funding were chosen by 
the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG). 
Councillor Pollen commented on the need for further clarity for residents 
regarding this issue.  

The Scrutiny Officer took this opportunity to thank members for their hard work 
over the past year. 

Resolved – That, with a unanimous vote for, the Annual Scrutiny Report 2020-21 
is agreed and will go ahead to Full Council on Tuesday 22nd June 2021. 

 
OSC 21/10 Task and Finish Group Updates  

 

The Chair informed members, especially the new members, that the ongoing 
task and finish groups (bar the Recycling Task & Finish Group which is coming to 
an end) is open to all members. 

The Scrutiny Officer gave an update on the current task and finish groups. It was 
noted that the Recycling Task & Finish Group is coming to an end with a report 
due at the next OSC meeting in July. The next meeting for both Health & 
Wellbeing committees have been agreed for later in June. The Scrutiny Officer 
also noted that the Housing Complaints Guidance, as requested by the Housing 
Task & Finish Group, is due at the next OSC meeting. So, the Housing group will 
have a meeting to agree on the guidance before the July OSC meeting agenda is 
due to be published. They also highlighted the future Task & Finish Groups on 
the list, “Social Media Review Policy” and “Effective Digital Engagement for 
Overview and Scrutiny”, the latter of which was still needing members.  

The Scrutiny Officer finished by reminding members that if there was a topic 
they wished to add to the task and finish group work programme, they can 
inform either the Chair or the Scrutiny Officer. 

Councillor Pollen asked to be added to the Housing Task & Finish Group once 
the Recycling Task & Finish Group had been complete. 

Councillors Gwynneth Everett and Doug Wilson asked regarding training 
regarding OSC. The Scrutiny Officer confirmed that they were investigating all 
types of training opportunities and would arrange it with enough time for all 
members to attend. Members were also reminded that questions could be 

Page 7



asked during the informal Scrutiny meetings or via email to the Scrutiny Officer 
or the Chair. This training will be conducted virtually. 

 
OSC 21/11 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme  

 

The Scrutiny Officer gave an overview of the OSC Work Programme, noting that 
this could still be amended as appropriate throughout the year to include other 
topics. They also highlighted that there would need to be some amendments 
made as some of the subject descriptions were incorrect. These would be 
amended as appropriate. 

Councillor Meteer asked what the topic “Town Council Updates” was regarding. 
The Scrutiny Officer informed councillors that the subject came about from an 
Informal Scrutiny Committee meeting, where it was requested that there would 
be further involvement with and improved partnership with Town Councils. And, 
that it was specific to Town Councils as that had been the request, but if 
members would like the update to include in if required. 

Councillor Wilson noted that Millom Town Council were involved with three tier 
meetings that she believed very beneficial in creating a partnership and 
relationship between town, parish and borough councils. 
 

OSC 21/12 Date and Time of Next Meeting:  
 
The Chair informed members that the next Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
will be held on Thursday 8th July 2021 at 2pm in the Copeland Centre. Further 
confirmation will be given closer to the time as to whether it would be in the 
Bainbridge Room or the Atrium. 
 
 
 
The Meeting closed at 3.53 pm  
 

 
Chair 

Page 8



 

 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

  

  

Executive 15 June 2021 

MAYOR’S FORWARD PLAN AND WORK PLAN  

  

This Plan is published in accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 

Regulations 2012. It provides details of key decisions which the Executive will be making during the above period.  

  

A key decision is a decision made by the Mayor either by himself, through his Executive, by individual Executive members or by officers 

performing an Executive function and is one which either results in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which are significant 

(compared to the local authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates) or is one which is significant in terms of its 

effects on communities living or working in an area comprising of two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area. The Council’s 

constitution states that ‘significant’ includes (a) any decision by the Executive in relation to proposed recommendations to Council to amend 

the policy framework; (b) any single item of expenditure or savings in excess of £50,000; or (c) any decision which is likely to have a 

permanent or long term (more than 5 years) effect on the Council or the Borough.  

  

A key decision cannot be made until at least 28 clear days has elapsed between publication of this document and the day the decision is made. 

An exception to this rule is where such publication of intention is impracticable. In those circumstances the period of 28 clear days may be 

reduced to 5 clear days provided that the chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been informed of the matter and shorter 

notice has been publicised. If 5 clear days cannot be given then a decision may only be made if the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee has agreed to the making of the decision on the grounds that the decision is urgent and cannot unreasonably be deferred.  

  

Where the decision maker is shown to be the Executive, the Executive will comprise of Mayor Mike Starkie and Councillors David Moore as 

Deputy Mayor, Steven Morgan and Andy Pratt. 

  

Copies of any document listed in the plan will be available from the officer shown in the table when the report is released, subject to them not 

containing confidential or exempt information.  

  

 

   

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 4



 

 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

Report  Who will 

make the 

decision  

Date on which the 

decision will be 

made  

Portfolio  

Holder 

Lead Officer  Key  
Decision 

Likely to contain 
confidential 
or exempt 

information 
 

2020/21 Council 

Performance Plan – 

Quarter 4 

Executive Executive 

15 June 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

Yes No 

Copeland 

Community Lottery  

Executive  Executive  

15 June 2021 

Commercial 
Services  

Cllr Steven Morgan  

 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

Yes No 

Confidential 

Reporting Policy 

Executive  Executive  

15 June 2021 

Mayor 

Mike Starkie 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

Yes No 

Outside Bodies 

Annual Report 

Council OSC 

10 June 2021 

 

Council  

22 June 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

No No 

Annual Scrutiny 

Report 

Council OSC 

10 June 2021 

 

Council  

22 June 2021 

 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

No No 

P
age 10



 

 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

Report  Who will 

make the 

decision  

Date on which the 

decision will be 

made  

Portfolio  

Holder 

Lead Officer  Key  
Decision 

Likely to contain 
confidential 
or exempt 

information 
 

2020/21 Finance 

Report – Quarter 4  

 

Executive   Executive 

27 July 2021 

Mayor 

Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  

Director of Financial 

Resources  

Yes No 

Moss Bay Enterprise 

Trust 

Executive Executive 

27 July 2021 

 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

 

Pat Graham –  

Chief Executive  

 

Yes No 

Health and Safety 

Monitoring Half 

Yearly Report 

1st Jan – 30th Jun ‘21 

 

Executive Executive 

27 July 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

 

Pat Graham –  

Chief Executive 

 

No No 

Fleet Renewal Executive Executive 

27 July 2021 

Commercial Services 

Cllr Steven Morgan 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

Yes No 

Disabled Facility 

Grant Policy 

 

 

 

Executive Executive 

27 July 2021 

Environment, Place 

and Inclusive 

Communities 

 

Steven Brown –  

Director of Financial 

Resources 

Yes No 

P
age 11



 

 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

Report  Who will 

make the 

decision  

Date on which the 

decision will be 

made  

Portfolio  

Holder 

Lead Officer  Key  
Decision 

Likely to contain 
confidential 
or exempt 

information 
 

Corporate Debt 

Recovery Policy 

Council Executive 

24 August 2021 

 

Council 

7 September 2021 

Mayor 

Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  

Director of Financial 

Resources  

 

Yes No 

2021/22 Council 

Performance Plan – 

Quarter 1 

Executive Executive 

24 August 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

Yes No 

2021/22 Finance 

Report – Quarter 1  

 

Executive   Executive 

24 August 2021 

Mayor 

Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  

Director of Financial 

Resources  

 

Yes No 

Constitution 

Refresh/Update 

 

Council Council 

7 September 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

Yes No 

Constitution –  

Financial Regulations 

Council Council 

7 September 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

Yes No 

P
age 12



 

 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

Report  Who will 

make the 

decision  

Date on which the 

decision will be 

made  

Portfolio  

Holder 

Lead Officer  Key  
Decision 

Likely to contain 
confidential 
or exempt 

information 
 

2021/22 Council 

Performance Plan – 

Quarter 2 

Executive Executive 

9 November 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

Yes No 

2021/22 Finance 

Report – Quarter 2  

 

Executive   Executive 

9 November 2021 

Mayor 

Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  

Director of Financial 

Resources  

 

Yes No 

2021/22 Council 

Performance Plan – 

Quarter 3 

Executive Executive 

1 February 2022 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

Yes No 

2021/22 Finance 

Report – Quarter 3  

 

Executive   Executive 

1 February 2022 

Mayor 

Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  

Director of Financial 

Resources  

 

Yes No 

Health and Safety 

Monitoring Half 

Yearly Report 

1st Jul – 31st Dec ‘21 

Executive Executive 

1 February 2022 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

 

Pat Graham –  

Chief Executive 

 

No No 

  

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  OSC080721 
 

 

1 

 
 

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UPDATE FOR QUARTER FOUR OF 2020-21 

 
EXECUTIVE MEMBER:   Cllr David Moore 

LEAD OFFICER:  Sarah Pemberton,  
Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy 
 

REPORT AUTHOR:  Gillian Butterworth,  
Performance and Risk Management Officer 

 

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE?   

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee supports the Executive in ensuring that 

the Council complies with its duties of Best Value and value for money.  It also 

has a key role to play in promoting and monitoring good performance 

management throughout the Council.    

 RECOMMENDATION:  

a) Note performance against Key Performance Indicators  

 

1.        INTRODUCTION 
1.1 The Executive monitor progress of the Council’s strategic ambitions 

through the Performance Management and Improvement Framework.   
 
As part of the Framework, this report presents the outturn position of 
Key Performance Indicators at the end of Quarter four 2020/21.  

 

2.0 DETAILS 
 
2.1  Data was available for 23 out of 24 KPIs at the time of reporting.  
 At the end of Quarter four; 

 74% of KPIs had met the target set for the Quarter  
(17 out of 23). 

 75% of KPIs met the overall annual target set for the year  
(18 out of 24). 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



  OSC080721 
 

 

2 

 
 

 When compared to last year, the end of year (annual) data shows 
that 54% of KPIs performed as well as, or better than the previous 
year. (13 out of 24) 

  

2.2 Tables 1 and 2 below  list corporately owned and non-corporately 
 owned KPIs, the tables  show ‘at a glance’ whether each KPI met the 
 Quarter four target; the annual target and whether the annual  outturn 
 performance was, equal to or  better than the previous year.  
 Full details and end of year analysis of all KPIs are listed in Appendix A. 

 
 

Table 1.       Corporately owned KPIs 

Corporately owned Key Performance Indicator Was Q4 

target 

met? 

Was 

annual 

target 

met? 

Was 

outturn 

better 

than 

19/20? 

KPI 9 Local people supported with work & skills    

KPI 10 Speed of processing - new HB claims    

KPI 11 Speed of processing - new CTR claims    

KPI 12 Speed of processing - changes for HB claims    

KPI 13 Speed of processing - changes for CTR claims    

KPI 14 Homeless relief cases resolved in 52 days    

KPI 15 
Satisfaction with Domestic Abuse project intervention & 

support     

KPI 17 % Freedom of information requests closed in 20 days    

KPI 21 
% 'major' planning applications determined within 13 

weeks    

Page 16



  OSC080721 
 

 

3 

 
 

Corporately owned Key Performance Indicator Was Q4 

target 

met? 

Was 

annual 

target 

met? 

Was 

outturn 

better 

than 

19/20? 

KPI 22 
% planning 'minor' planning applications determined 

within 8 weeks    

KPI 23 % 'other' applications determined within 8 weeks    

KPI 24 Percentage of planning appeals dismissed    

 

 
 
Table 2      Non- Corporately owned KPIs 
 

Non Corporately owned Key Performance Indicator Was the 

Was Q4 

target 

met? 

Was 

annual 

target 

met? 

Was 

better 

than 

19/20? 

KPI 1 Percentage of Council Tax collected    

KPI 2 Number empty homes <6m brought back into use -   

KPI 3 Number of new homes approved    

KPI 4 Number of new homes built    

KPI 5 Number of AFFORDABLE homes BUILT    

KPI 6 Number of larger family/aspirational homes built    

KPI 7 External funding for Economic Development Secured    

Page 17



  OSC080721 
 

 

4 

 
 

Non Corporately owned Key Performance Indicator Was the 

Was Q4 

target 

met? 

Was 

annual 

target 

met? 

Was 

better 

than 

19/20? 

KPI 8 Percentage of Non-domestic Rates Collected    

KPI 16 Percentage of complaints resolved at stage one    

KPI 18 
% Recycling Rate - percentage of household waste sent 

for reuse, recycling and composting    

KPI 19 Residual Waste collected per household (kg)    

KPI 20 Percentage CTAX payed using DDeb payment     

 
 

2.3 Four KPIs did not meet their quarterly and annual target or match 
 performance compared to the previous year, for these KPIs the following 
 context is offered, 
 

 KPI 11 - Speed of processing new Council Tax Reduction Scheme claims.   

The speed of processing claims has been impacted by a number of 

factors over the last year, including, an overall increase in the number of 

claims to process, changes to universal credit notifications, additional 

statutory functions placed on the Benefits Team, including Covid Test 

and Trace Payments and Council Tax Hardship Fund administration, and 

changes in staffing.   

For this area of the business four KPIs are used to monitor the speed of 

processing Housing Benefits and Councils Tax claim administration.  The 

factors listed above can be seen to have had an impact on all four of the 

‘speed of processing’ KPI measures throughout the year, however at the 

end of Quarter four, three out of four of these KPIs had met the 

quarterly target and were ‘back on track’.  Please see Appendix A for full 

Page 18



  OSC080721 
 

 

5 

 
 

details and charts that plot KPIs 10, 11, 12 and 13 relating to speed of 

processing. 

Targeted process improvements and staff training have been 

implemented and it is expected that the processing time for new Council 

Tax Reduction Scheme claims (KPI 11) will fall back within target going 

forward into 2021/22. 

 

 KPI 8 – Percentage of Business Rates collected. 

The overall annual target for business rates collection was 99.20% and 

the actual amount collected was 98.55%, which is 0.65% below target 

and 0.65 % less than collected in the previous year.  

Quarterly collection targets were met in the first three quarters of the 

year, however, less than expected NNDR collected in quarter four 

impacted the annual average collection rate.  The 98% collection rate 

achieved is still above the annual average collection rate for the previous 

three years combined, which is 95.69% (2017/18 98.68%, 2018/19 

89.19%, 2019/20 99.2%). 

 

 KPI 18 - Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and 

composting.  During 2020/21 there was a 29% increase in the volume of 

recyclates collected during when compared to the previous year, 

however an overall increase in the volume of all waste collected, and a 

reduction in green waste collection, resulted in a reduction to the overall 

annual recycling rate.  The annual target of 37% recycling rate was not 

met and this was a decrease of 1% compared to 36% in 2019/20.   

 

Necessary service reconfigurations in response to the Covid 19 pandemic 

meant that there were delays to the start of the garden waste 

collections, which resulted in a significant reduction in the volume of 

garden waste collected (17.9% reduction compared on the previous 

year).   

Page 19



  OSC080721 
 

 

6 

 
 

Additional information on the breakdown of recylates collected during 

2019/20 an 2020/21 is provided in Appendix B. 

 

 KPI 19 Residual Waste Collected – Averaged by number of households.   

The annual target was not met.  The amount of residual waste collected 

was equivalent to 515 tonnes per household in 2020/21 which is an 

increase of 5.9% compared to 471 tonnes averaged per household in 

2019/20. 

The increase can be attributed to changes in behaviour and practices as 

a result of the Covid 19 pandemic and lockdowns.  Community 

engagement and educational activities planned for 2021/22 will aim to 

prioritise waste reduction and improve recycling and diversion rate. 

 

3.0 CONCLUSIONS 
 
3.1 Throughout 2020/21, while mitigating the ongoing challenges of the 
 Covid 19 pandemic, key corporate and operational activities were 
 maintained and the impacts on operational delivery were assessed by 
 the Corporate Leadership Team through the performance and risks 
 frameworks.    
 
3.2 Strategic and partnership activity continued and progress was reported 
 to Full Council on 27th April 2021 through the Mayors Executive Report.   
 
 

4.          STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS   
 
4.1 Legal comments are: No legal issues arise from this report 

4.2 The Monitoring Officer’s comments are: This report provides a progress 
 update to the Executive on key deliverables arising from the Corporate 
 Strategy. Any legal issues arising from any individual key deliverables will 
 be dealt with as appropriate.  
 
4.3 The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: Contained within the report 

 The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy, 2020/21 Budget and 

 Capital Plan  underpins the Corporate Strategy 

Page 20



  OSC080721 
 

 

7 

 
 

4.4 EIA Comments:  The Corporate Strategy and Service Plans against which 

 performance is measured have undergone Equality Impact Assessments.  

 Individual projects and partnership delivery against the Corporate 

 Delivery Plan are subject  to provide EIAs. 

4.5 Policy Framework:  Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules as set 

 down in the Council’s Constitution. This report directly reports on the 

 delivery of the Corporate Strategy and associated documents. 

 
5. OTHER CONSULTEE COMMENTS   

5.1 Consultees: The Executive reviewed this report on 15 June 2021. 

 Minutes note the Executive decision as (EXE 21/7) RESOLVED – that 

 progress made against the Corporate Strategy key deliverables and 

 performance measured through Key Performance Indicators at the end 

 of Quarter Four of 2020/21 be noted. 

 

6.   BACKGROUND PAPERS AND APPENDICIES    
 
 Appendix A – KPI Report for Q3 of 2020/21 
 Appendix B – For Information - Breakdown of recyclates collected during 
 2019/20 and 2020/21. 

 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



          Appendix A 

 

1 

KPI 1 Percentage of Council Tax collected 

 

 Value Target 
Value vs 

Target 
Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 28.73% 23.79% 4.94%  0.54% difference when compared to 29.27% in the same quarter in 2019/20 

Q2 2020/21 55.53% 47.58% 7.95%  1.03% difference when compared to 56.56% in the same quarter in 2019/20 

Q3 2020/21 82.88% 71.37% 11.51%  1.07% difference when compared to 83.95% in the same quarter in 2019/20 

Q4 2020/21 95.85% 95.16% .69%  1.3% difference when compared to 97.15%  in the same quarter in 2019/20 

2020/21 Total 95.85% 95.16% .69%  

The annual target for this KPI was met, 95.85% of Council Tax was collected in 

2020/21. 

For comparison, last year 97% was collected, this equates to a 1.3% reduction in the 

collection rate. 
 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

 

Key Performance Indicator Report for Quarter 4 of 2020/21 
 
 

 

P
age 23



          Appendix A 

 

2 

KPI 2 Number empty homes <6months brought back into use 

 Value Target 
Value vs 

Target 
Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 29 20 9  Compared to 22 in the same quarter last year 

Q2 2020/21 19 20 -1  Compared to 12 in the same quarter last year 

Q3 2020/21 52 20 32  Compared to 49 in the same quarter last year 

Q4 2020/21 -  20 -   
This KPI relies on the analysis of data provided by Cumbria County Council, the Q4 

figures were not available at the time of reporting. Using data from the other three 

quarters, the annual target has been met for 2020/21.  This has also exceeded the 

number of empty homes brought back into use in the previous year 2019/20 (84) 
2020/21 100 80 20  

 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

 

P
age 24



          Appendix A 

 

3 

KPI 3 Number of new homes approved 

 Value Target 
Value vs 

Target 
Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 26 50 -24  Compared to 18 in the same quarter 2019/20 

Q2 2020/21 109 50 59  Compared to 108 in the same quarter 2019/20 

Q3 2020/21 45 50 -5  Compared to 27 in the same quarter 2019/20 

Q4 2020/21 57 50 7  Compared to 127 in the same quarter 2019/20 

2020/21 Total  237 200 37  

The annual target for this KPI was met.  When compared to last year, the number of 

new homes approved was less in 2020/21 (237)  than to 2020/19 (280) 

  

 
 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

P
age 25



          Appendix A 

 

4 

KPI 4 Number of new homes built 

 Value Target 
Value vs 

Target 
Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 13 35 -22  Compared to 43 new homes build in the same quarter 2019/20 

Q2 2020/21 58 35 23  Compared to 43 new homes build in the same quarter 2019/20 

Q3 2020/21 37 35 2  Compared to 50 new homes build in the same quarter 2019/20 

Q4 2020/21 45 35 10  Compared to 15 new homes build in the same quarter 2019/20 

2020/21 Total 153 140 13  

The annual target for this KPI was met and the total number of new homes built in 

2020/21 ( 153) was greater than the previous year (151 in 2019/20) 

 
 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

 

P
age 26



          Appendix A 

 

5 

 

KPI 5 Number of AFFORDABLE homes BUILT 

 Value Target 
Value vs 

Target 
Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 16 3.5 12.5  Compared to 0 affordable homes built in the same quarter in 2019/20 

Q2 2020/21 22 3.5 18.5  Compared to 0 affordable homes built in the same quarter in 2019/20 

Q3 2020/21 0 3.5 -3.5  Compared to 0 affordable homes built in the same quarter in 2019/20 

Q4 2020/21 0 3.5 -3.5  Compared to 4 affordable homes built in the same quarter in 2019/20 

2020/21 Total 38 14 24  
The annual target for this KPI was met and the number of affordable homes built in 

2020/21 (38) was greater than 2019/20 (4) 
 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

P
age 27



          Appendix A 

 

6 

KPI 6 Number of larger family and aspirational homes built 

 Value Target 
Value vs 

Target 
Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 12 5 7  Compared to 24 aspirational homes built in the same quarter in 2019/20 

Q2 2020/21 18 5 13  Compared to 11 aspirational homes built in the same quarter in 2019/20 

Q3 2020/21 27 5 22  Compared to 21 aspirational homes built in the same quarter in 2019/20 

Q4 2020/21 14 5 9  Compared to 11 aspirational homes built in the same quarter in 2019/20 

2020/21 Total 71 21 50  
The annual target was met and the number of new homes built in 2020/21 (71) was 

greater than 2019/20 (61). 
 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

 

P
age 28



          Appendix A 

 

7 

KPI 7 External funding for Economic Development Secured 

 Value Target Value vs Target Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 £1056649.00 £125000.00 £931649.00 
 The annual target of £500,000 was met and the overall amount of external 

funding secured for 2020/21 was £2.1 million.  Funding secured for economic 

development in 2020/21 comprised  

 

£1056649.00 –  CLEP Match funding for Whitehaven Future High Streets Fund 

£1000000.00 –  Town Fund Accelerated Funding (Cleator Moor and Millom) 

£140000.00  -    MHCLG RDEL capacity funding 

 

For comparison purposes, a total of £2584909.00 was secured for economic 

development in 2019/20 

 

Q2 2020/21 £1000000.00 £125000.00 £875000.00 

Q3 2020/21 £0.00 £125000.00 -£125000.00 

Q4 2020/21 £140000.00 £125000.00 £15000.00 

2020/21 £2196649.00 £500000.00 £1696649.00 

 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

P
age 29



          Appendix A 

 

8 

KPI 8 Percentage of Non-domestic Rates Collected 

 Value Target 
Value vs 

Target 
Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 81.85% 24.90% 56.95%  Compared to 77.62% collected in the same quarter in 2019/20 

Q2 2020/21 88.65% 49.80% 38.85%  Compared to 86.42% collected in the same quarter in 2019/20 

Q3 2020/21 95.20% 74.70% 20.50%  Compared to 94.37% collected in the same quarter in 2019/20 

Q4 2020/21 98.55% 99.20% -.65%  Compared to 99.20% collected in the same quarter in 2019/20 

2020/21 98.55% 99.20% -.65%  
The annual target for this KPI was not met 98.55% NNDR was collected in the year 

which was 0.65% less than last year.  
 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

 

P
age 30



          Appendix A 

 

9 

 

KPI 9 Local people supported with employability and skills 

 Value Target Value vs Target Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 37 15 22  Compared to 12 people supported in the same quarter last year 

Q2 2020/21 54 15 39  Compared to 0 people supported in the same quarter last year 

Q3 2020/21 28 15 13  Compared to 20 people supported in the same quarter last year 

Q4 2020/21 28 15 13  Compared to 51 people supported in the same quarter last year 

2020/21 147 65 82  

The annual target for this KPI was met and a greater number of people 

were supported through the Skills and Work Programme in 2020/21 (147) 

than in 2019/20 (83) 
 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

 

P
age 31



          Appendix A 

 

10 

KPI 10 Speed of processing - new Housing Benefits claims 

 Value Target 
Value vs 

Target 
Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 11.06 18 -6.94  Compared to 10 days to process a new HB claim in the same quarter last year 

Q2 2020/21 13.38 18 -4.62  Compared to 6 days to process a new HB claim in the same quarter last 

Q3 2020/21 14.36 18 -3.64  Compared to 8 days to process a new HB claim in the same quarter last 

Q4 2020/21 14.14 18 -3.86  Compared to 11 days to process a new HB claim in the same quarter last 

2020/21 13.32 18 -4.68  
The annual target for this KPI was met.  When compared to the previous year, 

processing times were greater in 2020/21 (13 days) than 2019/20 (8.7 days).   
 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

P
age 32



          Appendix A 

 

11 

KPI 11 Speed of processing - new CTR claims 

 Value Target 
Value vs 

Target 
Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 17.62 days 18 -0.38  Compared to 11 days to process a new CTRS claims in the same quarter last year 

Q2 2020/21 23.57 18 5.57  Compared to 23 days to process a new CTRS claims in the same quarter last year 

Q3 2020/21 28.52 18 10.52  Compared to 14 days to process a new CTRS claims in the same quarter last year 

Q4 2020/21 20.59 18 2.59  Compared to 17 days to process a new CTRS claims in the same quarter last year 

2020/21 22.57 18 4.5 days  

The annual target for this KPI was not met.  On average it took 22.5 days to process a 

new Council Tax Reduction Scheme claim compare to 17 days in 2019/20.   

 
 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

 
 

P
age 33



          Appendix A 

 

12 

 

KPI 12 Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for HB claims 

 Value Target Value vs Target Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 7.99 10 -2.01  Compared to  6.6 days to process in the same quarter last year 

Q2 2020/21 10.23 10 0.23  Compared to 5 days to process in the same quarter last year 

Q3 2020/21 13.25 10 3.25  Compared to 5 days to process in the same quarter last year 

Q4 2020/21 2.11 10 -7.89  Compared to 1.8 days to process in the same quarter last year 

2020/21 8.39 10 -1.6  

On average it took 8 days to process a Housing Benefits change of 

circumstances.  For comparison the average time to process in 2019/20 

was 3 days.  
 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

 

P
age 34



          Appendix A 

 

13 

KPI 13 Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for CTR claims 

 Value Target Value vs Target Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 7.36 10 -2.64  Compared to  11 days to process in the same quarter last year 

Q2 2020/21 9.49 10 -0.51  Compared to 7 days to process in the same quarter last year 

Q3 2020/21 18.62 10 8.62  Compared to 5 days to process in the same quarter last year 

Q4 2020/21 4.79 10 -5.21  Compared to  3.5 days to process in the same quarter last year 

2020/21 14.2 days 10 4.2 days  

The target of 10 days to process a CTRS change of circumstances was met 

in three of the four quarters in 2020/21.  The annual average did not meet 

the target and was an increase on last year which was 6 days to process. 
 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

 

P
age 35



          Appendix A 

 

14 

 

KPI 14 Homeless relief cases resolved within 52 days 

 Value Target 
Value vs 

Target 
Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 95% 90% 5%  Compared to 92% in the same quarter last year - 41 from 43 within 56 days 

Q2 2020/21 94% 90% 4%  Compared to 88% in the same quarter last year - 42 from 45 within 56 days 

Q3 2020/21 94% 90% 4%  Compared to 96% in the same quarter last year  - 29 of 31 cases within 56 days 

Q4 2020/21 93% 90% 3%  
Compared to 98% in the same quarter last year  - 39 of 42 cases resolved within 56 

days 

2020/21 94% 90% 4%  

The annual target for this KPI was met and  94% of homeless relief cases were 

resolved within the statutory timeframe of 52 days. 

This was an increase of 2% on the previous year where 92 % were resolved in 

timeframe. 
 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

 

P
age 36



          Appendix A 

 

15 

 

KPI 15 Domestic Abuse intervention and support Project – satisfaction with support provided 

 Value Target Value vs Target Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 100% 90% 10% 
  

Satisfaction with the support provided the Domestic Abuse and 

Sexual Exploitation Intervention and support project remained 

at 100% for easy quarter in 2020/21. 

 

No data was collected in quarter 2 due to the impact of Covid 

on service resource. 

Q2 2020/21 - 90% - 
  

Q3 2020/21 100% 90% 10% 
  

Q4 2020/21 100% 90% 10% 
  

2020/21 100% 90% 10% 
  

 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

 

P
age 37



          Appendix A 

 

16 

 

KPI 16 Percentage of complaints resolved at stage one 

 Value Target 
Value vs 

Target 
Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 95% 90.00% 5%  Compared to 96% of complaints resolved at stage 1 in the same quarter last year 

Q2 2020/21 93% 90.00% 3%  Compared to 96% of complaints resolved at stage 1 in the same quarter last year 

Q3 2020/21 90% 90.00% -  Compared to 94% of complaints resolved at stage 1 in the same quarter last year 

Q4 2020/21 90% 90.00% -  Compared to 97% of complaints resolved at stage 1 in the same quarter last year 

2020/21 92% 90% 2%  
The annual target of 90% was met.  The percentage of complaints resolved at stage 

one in 2020/21 (92%) was slightly less than compared to the previous year (95%) 
 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

P
age 38



          Appendix A 

 

17 

 

KPI 17 Percentage of Freedom of information requests resolved within timescale 

 Value Target 
Value vs 

Target 
Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 87% 85.00% 2%  Compared to 82% of FOIs closed in timescale in the same quarter last year 

Q2 2020/21 80% 85.00% -5.00%   Compared to 76% of FOIs closed in timescale in the same quarter last year 

Q3 2020/21 89% 85.00% 4.00%  Compared to 95% of FOIs closed in timescale in the same quarter last year 

Q4 2020/21 92% 90.00% 2%  Compared to 94% of FOIs closed in timescale in the same quarter last year 

2020/21 87% 90.00% -3%  

While the quarterly targets were met in 3 out of 4 of the quarters, the annual target 

of 90% was not met for this KPI.  Performance was better than that of the previous 

year which was 86%. Staff recruitment and training have taken place in Q1 of 

2021/22 and this increased resilience is anticipated to increase the response rate 

going forward. 
 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

 
 

P
age 39



          Appendix A 

 

18 

KPI 18 % Recycling Rate - Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting 

 Value Target 
Value vs 

Target 
Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 38% 37% 1%  Compared to 44% recycling rate in the same quarter last year 

Q2 2020/21 41% 37% 4%  Compared to 44% recycling rate in the same quarter last year 

Q3 2020/21 30% 37% -7%  Compared to 40% recycling rate in the same quarter last year 

Q4 2020/21 27% 37 % -9%  Compared to 36% recycling rate in the same quarter last year 

2020/21 35% 37 % -2%  

The annual target of 37% recycling rate was not met.  This is a decrease when 

compared to 36% in 2019/20 

 

Delays to garden waste collections reduced the overall recycling rate significantly (17.9 

% reduction in garden waste collected on the previous year).   

Although there was a 29% increase in recyclates collected during 2020/21 compared to 

the previous year, an overall increase in the volume of all waste collected and reduction 

in green waste resulted in reduced recycling rates. 
 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

  

P
age 40



          Appendix A 

 

19 

KPI 19 Residual Waste collected – equated per household (kg) 

 Value Target 
Value vs 

Target 
Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 130 100 30  Compared to 115 in the same quarter last year 

Q2 2020/21 128 100 28   Compared to 115 in the same quarter last year 

Q3 2020/21 122 100 22   Compared to 112 in the same quarter last year 

Q4 2020/21 135 100 35   Compared to 129 in the same quarter last year 

2020/21 515 400 115  

The annual target for this KPI was not met.  515 tonnes of residual waste (per 

household) were collected in 2020/21 compared to 471 tonnes per household in 

2019/20. 

During 2020/21 there was an increase of 5.9% in the total volume of waste collected 

compared to the previous year (2019/20 - 20,990.2 tons collected and 2020/21 - 

22,221.5 tons collected). 

This increase can be attributed to changes in behaviour and practices as a result of the 

Covid 19 pandemic and lockdowns.  Community engagement and educational activities 

planned for 2021/22 will aim to prioritise waste reduction and improve recycling and 

diversion rate. 
 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

P
age 41



          Appendix A 

 

20 

 

KPI 20 Percentage CTAX payed using DDeb payment method 

 Value Target Value vs Target Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 - 60% -  
Nil return in Quarter 1 due to the impact of Covid  

Q2 2020/21 63.96% 60% 3.96%  
Compared to 63% collected in the same quarter last year.   

 

Q3 2020/21 62.67% 60% 2.67%  Compared to 62% collected in the same quarter last year.   

Q4 2020/21 63.13% 60% 3.13%  Compared to 61% collected in the same quarter last year.   

2020/21 63.25% 60% 3.25%  
The annual target was met and the performance was improved compared 

to last year (62% collection rate in 20219/20) 
 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

 

P
age 42



          Appendix A 

 

21 

KPI 21 Percentage of 'major' planning applications determined within 13 weeks 

 Value Target Value vs Target Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 100.00% 65.00% 35.00%   Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year 

Q2 2020/21 100.00% 65.00% 35.00%   Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year 

Q3 2020/21 100.00% 65.00% 35.00%  Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year 

Q4 2020/21 100.00% 65.00% 35.00%  Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year 

2020/21 100.00% 65.00% 35.00%  
The annual target was met and exceeded again for this KPI 

 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

 

P
age 43



          Appendix A 

 

22 

 

KPI 22 Percentage of planning 'minor' planning applications determined within 8 weeks 

 Value Target Value vs Target Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 100.00% 80.00% 20.00%   Compared to 97% in the same quarter last year 

Q2 2020/21 97.67% 80.00% 17.67%   Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year 

Q3 2020/21 95.50% 80.00% 15.50%  Compared to 99% in the same quarter last year 

Q4 2020/21 97.00% 80.00% 17.00%  Compared to 97% in the same quarter last year 

2020/21 97.54% 80.00% 17.54%  
The annual target was met and exceeded again for this KPI 

 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

 

P
age 44



          Appendix A 

 

23 

 

KPI 23 Percentage of 'other' applications determined within 8 weeks 

 Value Target Value vs Target Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 100.00% 80.00% 20.00%   Compared to 98% in the same quarter last year 

Q2 2020/21 100.00% 80.00% 20.00%   Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year 

Q3 2020/21 100.00% 80.00% 20.00%  Compared to 98% in the same quarter last year 

Q4 2020/21 100.00% 80.00% 20.00%  Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year 

2020/21 100.00% 80.00% 20.00%  
The annual target was met and exceeded again for this KPI 

 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

 

P
age 45



          Appendix A 

 

24 

 

KPI 24 Percentage of planning appeals dismissed 

 Value Target Value vs Target Status Trend compared to last year and notes 

Q1 2020/21 100.00% 80.00% 20.00%   Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year 

Q2 2020/21 80.00% 80.00% .00%   Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year 

Q3 2020/21 100.00% 80.00% 20.00%  Compared to 100% in the same quarter last year 

Q4 2020/21 100.00% 80.00% 20.00%  Compared to 50% in the same quarter last year 

2020/21 95.00% 80.00% 15.00%  
The annual target was met and exceeded again for this KPI 

 

KPI performance 2020-21 KPI trend over last 2 years 

 

  

 

  

  

  

  

 
 

P
age 46



2020/21 April May June Q1 July August September

Paper Kerb 43.5 34.88 49.24 127.62 36.5 32.36 35.54

Card kerb 86.1 91.98 92.24 270.32 78.96 73.84 73.72

Glass Kerb 174.9 179.84 174.48 529.22 169.8 138.89 138.57

Cans Kerb 28.89 26.86 27.71 83.45 23.06 19.62 20.4

Plastic Kerb 52.65 48.94 50.49 152.09 54.61 45.85 47.47

PAPER card mix (mix) 6.58 10.52 24.72 41.82 52.52 38.08 36.84

GLASS/plastic/metal MIXED Kerb 0 0 0 0 30.2 34.55 38.93

2019/20 April May June Q1 July August September

Paper Kerb 60.58 56.5 56.42 173.5 60.44 66.08 56.4

Card kerb 68.42 69.52 65.92 203.86 70.54 69.12 62.48

Glass Kerb 105.58 105.72 99.02 310.32 113.94 103.62 90.26

Cans Kerb 22.16 22.25 20.39 64.8 20.02 18.17 16.57

Plastic Kerb 37.32 37.47 34.33 109.12 44.56 40.43 36.87

Card April May June Q1 July August September

2019/20 68.42 69.52 65.92 203.86 70.54 69.12 62.48

2020/21 92.68 102.5 116.96 312.14 131.48 111.92 110.56

% increase 135 147 177 153 186 162 177

Glass April May June Q1 July August September

2019/20 105.58 105.72 99.02 310.32 113.94 103.62 90.26

2020/21 174.9 179.84 174.48 529.22 200 173.44 177.5

% increase 166 170 176 171 176 167 197

Plastic/cans April May June Q1 July August September

2019/20 59.48 59.72 54.72 173.92 64.58 58.6 53.44

2020/21 81.54 75.8 78.2 235.54 77.67 65.47 67.87

% increase 137 127 143 135 120 112 127

Paper April May June Q1 July August September

2019/20 60.58 56.5 56.42 173.5 60.44 66.08 56.4

2020/21 43.5 34.88 49.24 127.62 36.5 32.36 35.54

% increase 72 62 87 74 60 49 63

In order to ensure that the rounds were completed most vehicles mixed card in with paper, the spilt was around 30% paper 70% card

Page 47



Q2 October November December Q3 January February March Q4

104.4 35.3 37.64 24.08 97.02 6.24 5.04 1.74 13.02

226.52 67.88 76.12 72.88 216.88 68.3 48.46 49.46 166.22

447.26 121.97 128.42 150.94 401.33 163.88 131.22 155.99 451.09

63.08 19.92 21.52 21.85 63.29 21.2 21.98 21.63 64.81

147.94 41.56 44.94 45.38 131.88 46.74 48.5 46.81 142.04

127.44 37.16 45.52 75.5 158.18 101.38 89.66 111.46 302.5

103.68 43.16 44.32 60.68 148.16 87.94 89.74 111.34 289.02

Q2 October November December Q3 January February March Q4

182.92 64.62 59.58 58.56 182.76 60.14 48.44 57.86 166.44

202.14 66.58 64.24 84.2 215.02 93.3 58 69.24 220.54

307.82 98.98 93.86 109.34 302.18 133.68 86.28 110.07 330.03

54.75 18.61 17.51 17.69 53.81 22.22 17.01 20.82 60.05

121.87 39.45 37.13 37.52 114.1 40.88 31.31 38.32 110.51

Q2 October November December Q3 January February March Q4

202.14 66.58 64.24 84.2 215.02 93.3 58 69.24 220.54

353.96 105.04 121.64 148.38 375.06 169.68 138.12 160.92 468.72

175 158 189 176 174 182 238 232 213

Q2 October November December Q3 January February March Q4

307.82 98.98 93.86 109.34 302.18 133.68 86.28 110.07 330.03

550.944 165.13 172.74 211.62 549.49 251.82 220.96 267.33 740.11

179 167 184 194 182 188 256 243 224

Q2 October November December Q3 January February March Q4

176.62 58.06 54.64 55.21 167.91 63.1 48.32 59.14 170.56

211.02 61.48 66.46 67.23 195.17 67.94 70.48 68.44 206.85

119 106 122 122 116 108 146 116 121

Q2 October November December Q3 January February March Q4

182.92 64.62 59.58 58.56 182.76 60.14 48.44 57.86 166.44

104.4 35.3 37.64 24.08 97.02 6.24 5.04 1.74 13.02

57 55 63 41 53 10 10 3 8

Page 48



79% increase

89% increase

25% increase

52% decrease

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank



  

Title: Procedural Guidance for Members on Housing Complaints 
 
LEAD MEMBER: Cllr Mike Hawkins 
LEAD OFFICER: Amanda Starr, Strategic Housing and Social Inclusion Manager 
REPORT AUTHOR: Julie Friend, Housing Strategy and Inclusion Officer 
 
Why has this report come to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee?  
 
This report is to introduce procedural guidance for Members which outlines how they 
can support their residents, who are private or social tenants, where there are issues 
with their housing and how to escalate these to CBC officers where appropriate. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: That OSC recommend the procedural guidance to all Members 
 
 
 
 

1. BACKGROUND  
 

1.1 The OSC set up a Housing Task and Finish Group to consider how Members could 
support the Housing Team and their residents on housing matters. One of the 
requests that came out of that group was for a document advising how 
Members can support residents with complaints about their housing.  
 

1.2 The document confirms that the first stage for any complaint is for the tenant to 
speak to their landlord about the issue, and details are given for the main social 
housing providers in Copeland.  
 

1.3 Where the matter is not resolved, the landlord’s own complaints procedures 
should be followed.  
 

1.4 CBC’s Housing Team can advise where there are potential serious hazards in the 
property, for both social and private rented properties, and will do an inspection 
if necessary, based on the Housing, Health and Safety Rating System (HHSRS).  
 

1.5 CBC has enforcement powers it can use where the landlord does not take 
appropriate action to rectify hazards in the property.  
 

1.6 The guidance includes a flow chart for Members, for both social and private 
tenants.  

 
 

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



  

 
 
 
 

2. Proposal 
 

2.1 It is proposed that the attached procedural guidance be shared with all elected 
Members, to assist them in their support of their residents in housing related 
matters.  

 
3. CONCLUSION  

 
3.1 The procedural guidance is referred to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 

consider and recommend to Elected Members.  
 
 
 
Background Paper and Appendices: 
 
 
Appendix 1 – Procedural Guidance on Housing Complaints 

Page 52



 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

Housing Complaints Procedure Document for Members – Social and Privately Rented 

Housing 

Social Rented 

Tenants who have an issue with their property should, in the first instance, contact their 

landlord to try and resolve the issue. The contact details for each of the main Registered 

Providers for Copeland are below. If their issue is not resolved within the timeframes set out 

in the RP’s own procedures, or not resolved to the tenant’s satisfaction then the tenant 

should escalate the issue via the RP’s complaints procedure. Links to these are also provided 

below. If a complaint is still unresolved after following the complaints procedure the tenant 

can contact the Housing Ombudsman Make a complaint - Housing Ombudsman (housing-

ombudsman.org.uk) 

When contacting the RP via the methods below, tenants should be advised that they need 

to be clear whether they are lodging a complaint to ensure their contact is logged as such. 

We would advise them to say explicitly “I want to make a formal complaint” if that is their 

intention. 

If during this process the tenant believes the property to be hazardous to their health, they 

can speak to one of our Housing Renewals Officers, who can provide further advice and 

contact the Registered Provider if necessary.  

Registered 
Provider 

Telephone 
Number for 
repairs 

Email address/Website 
link 

Complaints Procedure 

Home Group 
 
www.homegr
oup.org.uk  

 

03451414663 
 
Choose Option 3 

Home Group | I need to 
fix an issue 
 
Email: 
contactus@homegroup.
org.uk  

Home Group | Compliments and 
complaints 
 
Tel: 0345 141 4663 
 
Write to: Home Group, Gosforth 
Park Way, Newcastle upon Tyne 
NE12 8ET 

Castles and 
Coasts 
 
https://castl
esandcoasts.
co.uk 
 

Telephone 0800 
085 1171  
 

Report a Repair - Castles 
& Coasts Housing 
Association 
(castlesandcoasts.co.uk) 

Email: 
feedback@castlesandcoasts.co.uk 
 
In writing: Customer Services, 3 
Castle Street, Carlisle, CA3 8SY 
 
Policy can be accessed here 
Customer Feedback - Castles & 
Coasts Housing Association 
(castlesandcoasts.co.uk) 

Impact 
Housing 
www.impacth
ousing.org.uk  

03448 736 290 Repairs | Impact 
Housing  
 
reportrepairs@impacth
ousing.org.uk  

Comments, compliments & 
complaints | Impact Housing 
 

Page 53

https://www.housing-ombudsman.org.uk/residents/make-a-complaint/
https://www.housing-ombudsman.org.uk/residents/make-a-complaint/
http://www.homegroup.org.uk/
http://www.homegroup.org.uk/
https://www.homegroup.org.uk/manage-my-home/renters/maintenance-and-repairs/i-need-to-fix-an-issue/
https://www.homegroup.org.uk/manage-my-home/renters/maintenance-and-repairs/i-need-to-fix-an-issue/
mailto:contactus@homegroup.org.uk
mailto:contactus@homegroup.org.uk
https://www.homegroup.org.uk/get-in-touch/compliments-and-complaints/
https://www.homegroup.org.uk/get-in-touch/compliments-and-complaints/
tel:03451414663
https://castlesandcoasts.co.uk/your-home/report-a-repair/
https://castlesandcoasts.co.uk/your-home/report-a-repair/
https://castlesandcoasts.co.uk/your-home/report-a-repair/
https://castlesandcoasts.co.uk/your-home/report-a-repair/
mailto:feedback@castlesandcoasts.co.uk
https://castlesandcoasts.co.uk/about-us/customer-feedback/
https://castlesandcoasts.co.uk/about-us/customer-feedback/
https://castlesandcoasts.co.uk/about-us/customer-feedback/
http://www.impacthousing.org.uk/
http://www.impacthousing.org.uk/
https://www.impacthousing.org.uk/repairs
https://www.impacthousing.org.uk/repairs
mailto:reportrepairs@impacthousing.org.uk
mailto:reportrepairs@impacthousing.org.uk
https://www.impacthousing.org.uk/comments-compliments-complaints
https://www.impacthousing.org.uk/comments-compliments-complaints


 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

Home Group are Copeland’s largest social housing provider and Amanda Starr, Strategic 

Housing and Inclusion Manager, and Cllr Andy Pratt, Portfolio Holder for Housing, meet 

quarterly to discuss strategic aims (for both Home Group & CBC) as well as operational 

issues that may arise. This Strategic Partnership will address any issues that escalate to the 

Strategic Team through Councillors, residents and officers.  

Our Housing Renewals Team Leader has monthly meetings with Home Group, covering 

housing standards issues, and this can also be used to raise any matters of concern that are 

escalated to the housing team. The Council cannot take formal legal action against the 

landlord if the tenant has not already been through their own internal complaints/reporting 

procedure, and so the tenant should be advised to do this before contacting our team.  

Privately Rented   

Private tenants should also contact their landlord to raise any repair issues that are the 

landlord’s responsibility. If the landlord is not taking appropriate action or responding to the 

tenant then they can contact our housing standards team for advice, giving their name, 

address, landlord’s contact details and information regarding the repair that is required, 

including when the issue was reported to the landlord.  

An officer will arrange to visit the property once the landlord has been informed that it is 
our intention to carry out an inspection as per the requirements of the Housing, Health and 
Safety Rating System HHRS). 

The Housing, Health and Safety Rating System 

The Housing, Health and Safety Rating System (HHSRS) is a risk-based evaluation tool to help 
local authorities identify and protect against potential risks and hazards to health and safety 
from any deficiencies identified in dwellings. It is a system used to evaluate the potential 
risks to health and safety through building deficiencies and addresses 29 categories of 
hazards, each of which has a weighting which helps determine whether the property is 
rated as having a category 1 (serious) or category 2 (other). The system was introduced 
under the Housing Act 2004 and applies in England and Wales.  

Officers will work with the landlord to make sure any essential repairs are carried out. In the 
event that multiple Category 1 Hazards are identified during the inspection (immediate risk 
to the health and safety of the occupants) the housing renewals team will contact CBC 
housing options immediately and request emergency accommodation. 

 If the landlord does not comply, we may take legal action. Failure to comply with a 
statutory notice that is served could lead to a fine of up to £5,000. 

We have a range of options to deal with unfit properties in the private rented sector. Most 
problems can be sorted out without us having to take action, but we are serious about using 
our enforcement powers when there is no alternative.  

More information can be found in our Enforcement Policy. 

Page 54

https://www.copeland.gov.uk/attachments/housing-enforcement-policy


 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

 

Flow chart for tenant complaints 

 

 

 

Tenant identifies a 

repair/issue 

Social Housing 

Tenant 
Private Tenant 

Have they reported the 

repair/issue to the 

landlord?  

Yes 
No 

Advise them to report the 

issue to the landlord  
Is the tenant still 

dissatisfied? 

Yes 

No 

End of process 

Social Housing Tenants: 

Have they been through 

the Landlord’s complaint 

process? 

Yes 

Advise to contact 

Ombudsman and/or 

contact Housing Renewals 

for advice 

Private Tenants 

No 

Refer to 

landlord’s 

complaint process 

Advise them to contact 

CBC Housing Renewals 

Team 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



  

Title 
 
LEAD MEMBER: Cllr Andy Pratt 
LEAD OFFICER: Amanda Starr 
REPORT AUTHOR: Julie Friend, Les Finlay 
 
Why has this report come to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee? (e.g. Committee 
request, update report). 
 
To share an update on a pilot undertaken since January 2021 to allow discretionary 
Disabled Facilities Grants, which has, support our most vulnerable customers through 
the pandemic and to seek OSC support to continue. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
That OSC supports the initiative and recommends to Executive that the Discretionary 
measures piloted be incorporated into the Disabled Facilities Grant Policy. 
 
 
 
 

1. Purpose 

 

The purpose of this report is to set out the reasons for and results of a discretionary 

funding pilot relating to disabled adaptations and to seek OSC support to continue. 

Historically Copeland has only been able to resource mandatory Disabled Facilities 

Grants due to its limited budget from Central Government. This meant that we could 

only grant awards up to £30,000 with a £5k discretionary element and means tested all 

applications to ensure best use of funds.  This left some clients with a contribution to 

pay, especially those who owned their own home as that is treated as assumed income 

in the national system. In many cases the client could not afford the contribution and 

the adaptations did not go ahead.  

In January 2021, CLT agreed that the Housing team could run a 6-month pilot for 

discretionary DFG grant awards, to maximise support for people during the pandemic, 

enhance prevention and support a speedy response for those in most need.  This 

approach was taken to ensure CBC made best use of its remaining DFG budget 

allocation and to support the local response to the pandemic.   The pilot allowed us to 

streamline processes and target preventative measures, such as stair lifts – a relatively 

low-cost measure which significantly reduces falls leading to hospital admission. 

Page 57

Agenda Item 9



  

2. Budget Position 

The Council receives an annual allocation in April each year, via CCC, which historically 

has been overspent.  Over the past 4 years, the allocation has increased by over £200k 

and in addition the Government has provided top ups in December each year.  In 2020, 

our budget was healthy, but demand was lower than normal due to the impact of the 

pandemic.  During the first lockdown referrals stopped for several months, supply 

chains dried up, contractors were furloughed, and some customers understandably did 

not want work to progress.  This left a projected underspend in January 2021 of around 

£300k but with many people in our community needing help.  By year-end the 

underspend was committed, both to standard mandatory cases and to the new 

discretionary work introduced in Q4 of 2020/21. 

 

3. Discretionary Activity for Q4 2020/21 

The Government has appointed a sector infrastructure organisation called Foundations 

to support delivery of the Better Care fund in relation to DFG allocations.  The CBC 

Housing team met with Foundations in December 2020 to explore piloting a 

discretionary scheme to allow us to be more flexible in our approach.  The following 

recommendations for discretionary activity were endorsed by Foundations at that 

meeting and align with current legislation.   

The Regulatory Reform Order (2002) allows local authorities to provide grant funding 

outside of the statutory regulations, creating greater flexibility to meet local needs.  

Under the Regulatory Reform Order, subject to budget constraints, Copeland Borough 

Council considered, during the pilot: 

 Not means testing grants for anyone diagnosed with a terminal condition or 

longer-term degenerative conditions such as Motor Neuron Disease. 

 

 Not means testing grants for people needing to return home from hospital 

including but not limited to those affected by COVID 19 and to release bed in 

wards to support the NHS capacity during the pandemic. 

 

 Not means testing any grants under £7,500  

 

 Offering a grant for repairing or purchasing heating systems where there is a DFG 

adaptation being progressed and where fuel poverty or unsafe systems are 

identified as affecting health and wellbeing.  

 

 Funding more than £40,000 for large extension projects on a case by case basis, 

looking at the applicant’s circumstances. 

Page 58



  

 

4. Review of DFG Pilot 

Between January and June 2021 there have been 19 Discretionary Grants, 12 of these 

would not have been eligible and 3 of these have been cases that have have gone over 

£30k.  The total discretionary figure so far is £132,876.58, we are due to have some 

additional works come in shortly which could be an additional £10K. 

Funding adaptations over £30k has enabled clients to have ground floor extensions 

built, where moving is not appropriate, enabling them to have bedroom and bathrooms 

facilities installed to meet their mobility needs; not means testing for smaller amounts 

has enabled stair lifts to be installed, giving clients access to their upper floors for the 

first time in months and improving their quality of life, or allowing them to return home 

from hospital sooner.   

The Appendix to this report includes some real case studies to explain the difference 

this has made. 

The success and the benefits of the pilot scheme are not just confined to major 
adaptations - we have also been able to fast track applications for people who are 
trapped in hospital or a care home and unable to return home until their respective 
adaptation is complete. On a number of occasions, and with a multi-agency approach, 
we have been able to turn these cases around in days rather than weeks and months; 
this equates to a saving from the public purse in real terms as the average weekly cost 
of a care home is around £800, with the cost of a standard straight Stairlift about £1600, 
so for every month spent in a care home we could buy two Stairlifts. 
 
The pilot scheme also included a fast track approach, and disregard of the financial 
assessment, for any client who has a terminal illness prognosis. The team has now 
processed two of these applications, allowing us to treat an applicant and their family 
with the dignity and respect that is required following their life limiting diagnosis. It also 
gives the applicant a period of time to live a life as normal as possible without having to 
wait months for the essential works to take place. 
 
 

5. Conclusion 

For any changes to discretionary activity to be made permanent, they would need to be 

formally adopted within the DFG policy and be published for the public to view.  This 

would not override the council’s right to prioritise mandatory grant spend if needed due 

to budget constraints in future.  

With the budget, we have and the team’s overwhelming commitment to our client 

group going forward, we as a council have a real opportunity to improve the lives of so 

many people across Copeland and we ask for Member support. 

Page 59



  

 

Appendix - Case Studies – Discretionary Pilot  

Property in Whitehaven (Adult)   
Client presenting problems are: Frequent Epilepsy leading to Muskokseleta issues 
caused by numerous seizures on any given day making the stairs and first floor 
unusable.  Rehousing is not an option due to family composition; client has to sleep in 
the living room and has not been able to access the family bathroom or bedroom for 
over two years. Without this much needed adaptation this client’s mental wellbeing 
would be affected over the coming years, which inevitably would lead to the welfare of 
the rest of the family being affected as I have now witnessed on a number of occasions.   
Adaptation Type: rear ground floor extension bedroom/wet floor shower. 
Design cost approved: £714.00 
Works cost approved: £44,049.20 
Paid to date: £10,714.00 
Anticipated completion date: summer 2021. 
 
Property in Whitehaven (Child) 
Client presenting problems are: Dravet Syndrome - multiple seizures day and night that 
do not respond to normal epilepsy medication thus affecting the growth and 
development of this particular client. This family has already moved from their own 
private property into this Homegroup dwelling to allow this adaptation to proceed and 
have been supported through this process by CBC renewals team and the footsteps OT. 
This case has been ongoing since October 2018. Their existing property was deemed to 
be unsuitable for adaptation under the guidance of (what is practical and feasible) - the 
family then took the decision to investigate alternative properties, however due to 
financial restraints they were unable to purchase their own property, making a 
Homegroup property their only option - this was only possible with a commitment to 
fund the necessary adaptations from CBC.  
Adaptation Type: rear ground floor extension bedroom/wet floor shower. 
Design cost approved: £2303.00 
Works cost approved: £42,696.00 
Paid to date: £2303.00 
Works due to commence mid May 2021 
 
Owner occupier (Child) 
Client presenting problems are: Spina Bifida Affecting mobility and development. 
Family is looking to future proof the property, allowing them to remain in this area and 
maintain their support bubble. This client currently needs to be carried up the stairs for 
the WC, bathing and bedtime, and as they grow this will cease to be feasible and 
become a real health and safety issue for the mother. All alternatives have been looked 
at including a Stairlift, through floor lift and wet floor shower, unfortunately under the 

Page 60



  

terms of what is practical/feasible the only option is the provision of a ground floor 
extension.  
Adaptation Type: Proposed adaptation will be rear ground floor extension for a 
bedroom, wet floor shower area and an external step lift due to the existing site levels 
feasibility visit to take place on site week beginning 10/05/2021. 
Estimated cost of combined works: will be in excess of 45k 
Estimated start date: Late summer 2021. 
 

 
 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

 

 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
REPORT FROM TASK AND FINISH GROUP – RECYCLING REVIEW 

 
LEAD MEMBER: Councillor Jeanette Forster, Chair of the 

Recycling Task & Finish Group    
 
LEAD OFFICER: Sarah Pemberton, Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial Strategy 
 
REPORT AUTHOR: Rose Blaney, Scrutiny Officer   
 
             
 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
The Overview & Scrutiny Committee is recommended to: 
 

1) Accept the recommendations made in Part 7 of this report  
2) Forward the recommendations to the Executive 

 
 

  

  
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 This report has been prepared to provide Members with an 

update of the Recycling Task and Finish Group. 

1.2 Following the results of the 2017 Kerbside Recycling Task & Finish 

Group, a Recycling Review was requested at the beginning of 2020 

to make sure that the service was running efficiently. 

1.3 Due to the Covid-19 Pandemic, the Task & Finish Group Work 

Programme was delayed until February 2021. 

1.4 The Task & Finish Group consisted of Councillors Jeanette Forster, 

Jackie Bowman, James Date, Ged McGrath, Sam Pollen and Russell 

Studholme. 

1.5 The group met six times and have now completed their work. 

 
 
 

Page 63

Agenda Item 10



 

 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

 

2. BACKGROUND 
 

2.1 There are numerous piece of legislation around waste and 
recycling services which Copeland Borough Council (and all other 
local authorities who provide waste and recycling services to their 
residents) have to comply with: 

 The EU Waste Framework Directive 2008 set targets for 

all member states to reuse and recycle 50% of household 

waste by 2020. As of January 2015, the directive also 

requires councils to provide separate collection of paper, 

plastics, metal and glass. 

 Environmental Protection Act 1990 – places a duty on 

the authority to collect household waste and commercial 

waste where requested 

 Control of Waste Regulations 2012 – classifies waste by 

place of production and the nature or activity producing 

waste as well as the collection and disposal charges that 

can be made  

 The Waste Regulations 2011 – places a duty on those 

who deal with waste to implement the waste hierarchy 

2.2 In March 2018 Copeland Borough Council began implementing 
their new Kerbside Recycling service. 

2.3 The 2017 Kerbside Recycling Task & Finish Group focused on the 
adoption of the new recycling scheme. The group looked at the 
receptacles being brought into the service, the Communications 
engagement plan and incorporating the existing assisted 
collections policy. 

2.4 The Executive considered and incorporated the recommendations 
made by the Task & Finish Group into the introduction of the new 
recycling. 

2.5 At the beginning of 2020 councillors requested that there be a 
task and finish group created to review the recycling service 
considering: 

 It had been nearly two years since the scheme was 

initially implemented. 

Page 64



 

 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

 A large number of the complaints and enquiries coming 

into both councillors and the council’s customer services 

department were concerning waste. 

2.6 When considering the complaints regarding recycling, the group 
contacted the Council’s Communications Team to understand how 
the Council were contacted by residents and complaints were 
handled. The response can be seen in Appendix A. 

2.7 With the Covid-19 Pandemic, the entire Waste Service, but 
especially the Recycling Service, was severely impacted. 

2.8 Since 2019/20 there has been an increase of 150 properties in the 
total number of properties serviced by the crews (now 33760).* 

2.9 Since 2019/20 there has been an increase of 30% and 8% in 
Recycling and General Waste respectively.* 

2.10 With the increase in recycling, especially cardboard, a call for a 
review of the recycling receptacles (boxes and a bag for 
cardboard) was expected. However, due to Local Government 
Reform (LGR) possibly coming into effect later this year, there’s 
only so much that the group can effectively change. 

2.11 It should be noted that, unlike previous years, with the Covid-19 
pandemic so prevalent and an increase in the number of people 
now having to work from home, the reasons for the increase can 
be explained but there is uncertainty around whether this trend 
will continue long term. Especially with the planned ending of the 
government’s lockdown. This would need to be taken into account 
when creating a forward plan. 

2.12 The recycling incentive from recycling credit payments and from 
selling the materials on the open market that Copeland had 
previously experienced had been in decline in recent years and 
should not be considered as a driving force in the improvement of 
services. 

2.13 Key to the Council and the Borough is the effect that waste can 
have on the environment. Wanting to protect and enhance the 
environment is one of Copeland Borough Council’s (CBC) three 
ambitions within the Corporate Strategy 2020-2040. Improving 
the recycling service will help to achieve this corporate aim. The 
environment must also be taken into account when reviewing the 
recycling service. 

 

Page 65



 

 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

*These figures are based on April-December 2020/21 compared to the April-
March figures of 2019/20, so they are not complete at the time of writing this 
report but have come from the Waste Department. 
 
 
 
 

3 SCOPE 
 

3.1 The Task & Finish Group agreed three key objectives: 
1) To review the current receptacles in circulation to ensure 

the residents of Copeland receive the best services. 
2) To make recommendations in support of an achievable and 

effective Forward Plan for the recycling service. 
3) To keep in mind the best practice following and implications 

of the Covid-19 pandemic and Local Government Reform 
(LGR) 

3.2 The group, with guidance from the Community Services Manager, 
focused on the current kerbside recycling service (which is the 
kerbside collection for dry recyclate of the five materials outlined 
in the Waste Framework Device; paper, card, plastics, metal and 
glass) and how it has performed over the last twelve months 
through Covid-19. 

3.3 Further focus was also placed on possible improvements, 
specifically looking at moving from box receptacles, which were 
recommended in the 2017 Kerbside Recycling Task & Finish 
Group, to bins. Similar to neighbouring authority Allerdale 
Borough Council. 

3.4 The group excluded other aspects of the Waste department such 
as food, green and commercial waste. However, they did 
acknowledge food waste briefly when taking into account that 
Food Waste Collection may be brought into effect in 2023. 

3.5 Also not included in the in-depth discussion were any forms of 
recycling that is not on the kerbside recycling model such as ‘bring 
sites and work that forms part of the Cumbria-wide WRAP 
consistency project. However, it was noted that a future project 
could be created to look into bringing back more of the council’s 
bring sites to help alleviate some of the large volume the 
collection crews have to deal with. 

3.6 The group acknowledged that the implemented recycling service 
must be fit for all residents of Copeland so the group were asked 
to give special attention to Equality & Diversity. This was 

Page 66



 

 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

especially important in the discussions around the 
recommendation to consider changing the receptacles from boxes 
to bins. 

 
 

 

4 COVID-19 
 
4.1 It would be remiss of the group to not consider the impact of the 

Covid-19 pandemic on the recycling service. 
4.2 As previously mentioned within the report, the Covid-19 pandemic 

put quite a lot of extra pressure on the recycling service and the 
waste department as a whole. 

4.3 The main pressure, and most concerning, was on staff. Due to the 
pandemic there were fluctuating levels of absences which caused 
staff shortages on some weeks. On the other hand, there were 
also times when staff worked eleven consecutive days without a 
break, which is not only unhealthy (both physically and mentally) 
but also led to a decrease in staff morale.  

4.4 Lockdown also brought other wellbeing issues to light, such as the 
worry that crews had for their families in possibly taking the virus 
home to them. 

4.5 There was also an increase in verbal abuse being given to staff, 
which included not only the crews themselves but Copeland Direct 
and other officers who were fielding complaints from the public. 
Some of this abuse included threats of physical abuse. 

4.6 Some of crews also felt that during the first lockdown there was 
disconnect between themselves and the rest of the council staff, 
as though they were cut off. Which did not help moral. 

4.7 Staffing levels weren’t the only concern, there were also the 
following problems that the waste crews had to deal with: 

 Increased demand for bin deliveries and exchanges 

 Box replacements 

 Increased number of properties being provided the 
recycling service (due to new builds) 

 Access issues in certain areas 

 Vehicle Breakdowns 
4.8 There has also been an increase in recycling quantities over the 

lockdown period due to people working from home and shopping 
more online. 

Page 67



 

 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

4.9 The combination of all the above issues have led to a service that 
may be reaching its council set targets but is not meeting 
resident’s expectations. 

4.10 It should also be mentioned that it was during this time that 
Copeland received a new Community Services Manager, who has 
not only jumped head first into the role, but has worked well with 
the group to give a presentation which provided evidence, 
statistics and further information for the group to help aid in their 
research. 

 
 
 

5 LOCAL GOVERNMENT RE-ORGANISATION (LGR) 
 
5.1 Alongside Covid-19, LGR was prevalent within the discussions. 

Knowing that a decision on LGR was imminent, the group was in a 
precarious position.  

5.2 Every member of the group knew that there was only so much 
that they could achieve with LGR coming around the corner. 

5.3  A lot of the decisions and recommendations that are made within 
the report keep LGR at the forefront. 

5.4 Not knowing what LGR will bring was a struggle as the group 
didn’t want to put a recommendation forward that would 
negatively impact the service when LGR was brought in. 

5.5 Similarly, there is also the introduction of the Environment Bill 
from 2020 which had been delayed going through Parliament due 
to the pandemic. The Bill and the Waste Regulations are pushing 
toward separate collections but does allow for co-mingled 
collections if the technology is in place to gain good quality 
material using technology. The impact of this will be cost.  

5.6 The quality of the material needed to allow for co-mingled 
collections are a concern. But there are currently 3 different 
consultations being undertaken regarding this which allows local 
authorities to have their say and many authorities are currently 
co-mingling recycling. Cumbria Waste have submitted the 
following information to the Community Services Manager 
regarding quality: 

“In regards to quality comparisons of comingled 
materials and source segregated, the latter will always be a 
better quality within reason. However from experience the 
costs associated in collecting segregated materials to say 

Page 68



 

 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

that of a dual stream card/paper mix and glass cans and 
plastics then the collection costs out weight any downside 
on quality. We process in excess of 40,000 tonnes of glass, 
cans and plastic containers at our Carlisle plant and produce 
high quality materials that we sell without any quality 
issues. Mixed card and paper is also a good quality material 
when collected separately from containers. The biggest 
issues around quality is when all the commodities are mixed 
together as full DMR” 

5.7 All of these possible impacts will need to be considered before any 
change was implements as the group does not want to propose 
spending money on changing the service only to have it need to 
revert back if we do not have the correct quality of material to 
allow for co-mingling. 

5.8 Even with the limitations highlighted above, the group persevered 
to help improve the recycling service. 

 
 
 6 FINDINGS 
 
6.1 One of the first things that the group did was research the current 

recycling system to understand how it operates. 
6.2 The group invited the Community Services Manager and the 

Portfolio Holder to come along to a meeting to give the group as 
much information as possible on the service and answer 
questions. The information provided looked at how the service 
currently operates, the struggles that they have faced during the 
Covid-19 pandemic and possible improvements that could be 
made. 

6.3 A key focus of the group was to look at staff within the waste and 
recycling department. It was brought to the attention of the group 
that staffing levels over the pandemic had been a challenge. There 
had been fluctuating absence levels and, due to this, some staff 
had been requested to work up to twelve days without a day off. 
This, understandably, led to a deflated workforce. 

6.4 The Community Services Manager supplied the group with the 
current staffing levels: 

 4 drivers and 8 loaders to cover the general refuse 
rounds 

Page 69



 

 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

 5 drivers and 10 loaders to cover the kerbside recycling 
rounds 

 2 drivers and 4 loaders to cover the green waste rounds 
(Seasonal) 

 19 street cleansing staff + 2 beach staff which are 
Seasonal 

 5 enforcement officer 

 1 to cover the rural round 

 2 to cover the Bulk round 
6.5 The Community Services Manager also noted that there are 

currently between 7 and 12 staff absent each day due to sickness 
or annual leave. 

6.6 When asked what was being done regarding the staffing issues, 
the Community Services Manager informed the group that a 
Vacancy Approval form would be submitted to Human Resources 
(HR) to advertise for more staff. These would either be part time 
or on flexible contracts. With the flexible contracts having a 
minimum of 32 hours per month. 

6.7 To date, there have been four staff taken on until the end of 
November and two on flexible contracts who are being used full 
time. 

6.8 The group recommend that, where possible, staff be made 
permanent. There is obviously a need and, going forward, there 
should never be a point where staff are pushed to their breaking 
point having to work twelve days or more to cover the work, 
without a day off. This can be achieved by hiring more staff and/or 
putting a policy in place to prevent this from happening again. 
Staff welfare is paramount. The Council know that Copeland value 
their staff and believe that the best way to support their wellbeing 
is to increase staffing levels as part of the Forward Plan for 
recycling. 

6.9 The group were also informed of the current issues with the waste 
vehicles which included them breaking down and, due to the 
current contract, a temporary replacement not being provided. 
The current fleet contract will expire in October 2022. There has 
been an officer group established to work on an options paper. 
The group would like to offer their support and willingness to 
work with this officer group when and where possible. 

6.10 As mentioned in part 5 of this report, LGR has thrown a roadblock 
in front of the group in terms of what they can realistically 

Page 70



 

 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

achieve. Due to this, and knowing that there is work still to be 
done, the group recommend re-establishing the group following 
the LGR decision being made public. The aim of the group coming 
back together once more information available will be to enable 
them to: 

 Work with the Community Services Manager to 
conduct a TEEP (Technically, Environmentally, 
Economically Practicable) analysis 

 Work with the Community Services Manager in the 
move towards the Deposit Return Scheme and 
Extended Producer Responsibility coming into effect. 

 Make an adequate Forward Plan for the service (as 
indicated as a key objective in Part 3) as there are 
multiple elements above that would effect any major 
changes proposed. 

 Investigate further the idea of increasing the number 
of Bring Sites within the Borough from 9. By 
increasing the number of Bring Sites, there would be 
an opportunity for less pressure on our crews if there 
were more options for residents to take their 
recycling. Particularly in our towns, such as Egremont 
which currently has no Bring Site. However, 
increasing Bring Site numbers would incur a cost to 
the council, not only in putting them into place but 
also to maintain them. Especially as they have 
previously been removed due to damage, anti-social 
behaviour, general waste being mixed in, infrequent 
collections and rats. Further information is required 
to ensure that the idea would be economically viable 
for the council and would work with the outcome of 
LGR. 

6.11 The group would also like to recommend, in a similar line of 
thought as 6.10, to have a full service review following the 
outcome of LGR. The group have no doubt that this would come 
naturally considering that LGR is most likely to bring about some 
kind of change to how the service is run, no matter the outcome. 
However, this recommendation is to specifically have a task and 
finish group involved within that service review to help officers 
conduct it. 

Page 71



 

 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

6.12 Aspects that the group would like to see within that service review 
include: 

 Possibly switching from boxes to bins 

 The routes covered 

 How often they would be covered (once a week, once 

every two weeks etc.) 

 Most suitable receptacles for different residents 

(bags, communal bins, shared household bins etc.) 

 Communications Plan to inform residents 

6.13 The group acknowledge the Environment Bill which may mean 
that the proposal to switch from boxes to bins may not be viable. 
But, should it be possible, it is estimated that this switch would 
cost the council over one million pounds. So, the budget would 
need to be considered and work be done in conjunction with the 
S151 Officer to make this a viable option for the service. 

6.14 Should the switch to bins be the council’s preferred option, it is 
estimated to cost around twenty thousand pounds to collect the 
boxes. 

6.15 These costs are only estimations and would also need to include 
the cost of replacements. Replacement to waste bins and 
recycling boxes currently have been part of the challenges for the 
services on top of the increase to recycling and the pandemic. 
Going forward, these services will need to continue (regardless of 
the receptacle used) and therefore will need to be factored in to 
any review. 

6.16 Knowing how important it is to keep the public updated on 
changes to recycling, the group contacted the Communications 
Team to investigate what a communications plan would like 
should there be a change to the current service which can be seen 
in Appendix A. 

6.17 Wanting to keep equality as a key aspect of this process, the group 
contacted the Copeland Disability Forum (CDF) to ask their opinion 
which can be seen in Appendix C. 

6.18 The group’s final recommendation is to look into ways to 
encourage a change in residents’ attitudes that would prevent 
vehicle access on residential street. This could be achieved via 
collections points, a communications plan or by working with 
Cumbria County Council to establish a permit system. If on 
collection days, every street can be vehicle accessible, the number 

Page 72



 

 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

of missed collections would deplete. Which would put less strain 
on the crews and help improve their moral. The group also noted 
that, if there was no vehicle access on a street for waste vehicles, 
there would also likely be no vehicle access for emergency 
services vehicles. 

 
 
 
7 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 As mentioned in part 6 of this report, the group have created 

some recommendations for Overview and Scrutiny to consider 
and then, should they agree, forward to the Executive. The 
recommendations are: 

a) Review the current system in place for those who 
work shifts to prevent them working as many days 
without a break as they were requested to during the 
pandemic. 

b) Continue to support the Community Services 
Manager in resolving staffing issues and have staff be 
retained and made permanent where possible. 

c) Investigate a way to improve vehicle access on 
residential streets (6.17) while including the views of 
CDF regarding assisted collections. The group are 
willing to help create this. 

d) Work with CDF regarding distribution of printed 
calendars to residents, as was recommended in 
Appendix C, keeping in mind the current system of 
printing on request. 

7.2 The above recommendations can be achieved regardless of the 
outcome of LGR.  

7.3 The key recommendation from the group is that, following the 
LGR outcome, they would like for the group to be re-established 
to conduct the topics discussed in 6.10 to 6.15 keeping in mind 
CDF’s views in Appendix C. 

 
 
 
8 CONCLUSION 
 

Page 73



 

 Information Classification - UNCLASSIFIED 

8.1 In conclusion, the Task & Finish group acknowledge the struggles 
that the service has had to endure through the pandemic and 
recognize all the brilliant staff who have gone above and beyond 
in their efforts to keeping the service in such trying times, 
especially with vehicle breakdowns and fluctuating staff levels. 
The crews are a real asset to the council. 

8.2 The group recognize that there is a lot of change coming to the 
recycling service from the government and note that, at the 
moment, the information of what that might be is not available 
and there will therefore need to be further investigation and 
involvement from the group. 

8.3 The group believe that increasing the number of permanent staff 
within the waste and recycling crews will help improve moral, 
welfare and the service as a whole, that implementing a plan to 
attempt to limit the number of cars on residential roads on 
collection day will improve the service and that following the 
outcome of LGR, a service review will be key. 

8.4 Keeping the task and finish group involved and up to date on the 
service will help keep councillors and residents involved in the 
process and will provide some support to the Community Service 
Manager when change needs to be implemented. 

 
 
 
 
Appendices:    A. CBC Communications Response 
     B. CBC 2018 Recycling Communication Plan 
     C. Copeland Disability Forum 

 
Background Documents:  CBC Corporate Strategy 2020-2024 

2017 Recycling Review Report  
 2021 Recycling Scope   

Page 74



   
 

 

Copeland Borough Council Communications Department Recycling 
Questions 

 
Questions are in bold 
 
1) What is the current communications plan for informing residents about 

the current recycling system? 
 

o As with most other services, there isn’t a single, written comms plan 
for the service in general (it would soon become out of date). We 
create large-scale comms plans for significant changes (for example, 
when we brought in the new system three years ago.) Then we also 
create “mini” comms plans around certain elements, for example 
national Recycling Week, the Great British Spring Clean or Christmas. 
The recycling comms lead, Leila Cox (LC), and Comms manager 
Andrew Clarke, are in daily contact with Shirley Procter-Dow (SPD) 
and Jan Boniface (JB) so that comms are aware of all current issues 
and can respond accordingly and quickly. In addition, there is a 
fortnightly scheduled recycling comms meeting with LC, SPD and JB. 

 
 

2) What is the current communications plan for informing residents about 
changes to recycling? (Whether that be day to day recycling issues or (if 
you have it still) the plan from when the boxes were introduced back in 
2018?) 

 
o The comms plan from three years ago when the new system was 

brought in is in Appendix B. Another large-scale change would 
require a similar approach, but obviously the detail would be decided 
through detailed planning and liaison with Waste and other players. 

o Re day-to-day changes. The comms team is informed towards the 
end of each day about which rounds have not been collected. Our 
delayed collections web page is updated daily saying where the 
delays are, which streets have been affected, why, and the expected 
return date (if available.) We then usually put a post on social media 
to direct those whose bin has been missed to that page for more 
details. This saves a lot of calls to customer services. Customer 
Services also receive the same daily list so our messages are 
consistent. 

APPENDIX A 

Page 75



   
 

o If there is a current issue and we need to ask the public to change a 
behaviour (eg “windy weather is forecast. Click here for our advice 
for putting out your recycling during bad weather” or “We had a lot 
of non-recyclable material in the boxes this week – here’s what you 
can and can’t put in etc) we put out a social media post. We might 
also add it to our staff intranet, residents’ newsletter or our 
councillors’ newsletter, as appropriate. 

o If residents have missed the information about what can go in their 
boxes (and they put the wrong thing in) the box will be left with a 
card explaining why (waste should have a copy of this if you need it.) 

o Re changes due to bank holidays, this is communicated via a press 
release, social media, staff intranet, residents’ newsletter and 
councillors’ newsletter. It is also, of course reflected on everyone’s 
online collection calendar. 

 
 
3) What are the current trends in complaints that recycling receives on social 

media and how do communications respond to member of the public 
regarding these complaints? 

 
o It is mostly about missed/late collections. There are also sometimes 

complaints about boxes not being put back in the right place, litter 
left behind, and about the system in general not being user-friendly 
(they would prefer one big bin for all recycling).  

o If someone is reporting an individual missed bin, we don’t process 
that directly through Comms and social media -  they are directed to 
our delayed collections page first, as there may be an 
explanation/return date on there. They are also told that, if they do 
not find an answer there, they can contact us by phone or email for 
more information. This process (ie the fact that we can’t process 
individual missed bin queries through social media,) is also outlined 
on our website and is often highlighted on our Facebook page. 

o If they are asking about an area that we already know has been hit by 
a wider delay, we’ll tell them that and give them the latest 
information that we have (and advise them to check our delayed 
collections page for further updates.) 

o For other complaints/questions, Comms liaises with SPD or JB to get 
an explanation/answer/apology as appropriate, and responds via 
whichever platform the complaint was received on. Often the 

Page 76



   
 

complaints are ones we’ve had before, so we’d just respond with the 
agreed answer without needing to consult the waste team first. 

o We might also direct people to our online operational FAQs, or to our 
extensive recycling advice pages. 

o If necessary, we tell people how they can contact our complaints 
officer. 

 
 

4) If a new recycling system were to be put in place, how would Comms 
inform members of the public, what would be the plan they would like to 
create? 

 
o Appendix B is an example. 
o A major factor, if we were to change again, would be a pilot. We did 

not pilot the previous scheme, so had no chance to test things, 
change things and sort out teething issues. If we ran a pilot, it would 
of course inform the comms plan. 

 
 

5) The group want to work with Comms to remind residents to allow room 
for the waste vehicles to get up and down the residential streets, wanting 
to emphasise that if a waste truck can’t get down the street then some 
emergency vehicles (such as fire engines) may not be able to either – what 
is the current plan and how would be the best way to create a new one 
(should it be needed)? 

 
o This is an ongoing problem for waste and comms and I’m not sure it 

will ever be solved by general comms. We do highlight it on social 
media a lot but I think the fact is that people really don’t want to park 
anywhere other than outside their home. 

o It’s difficult to convey the issue until you’ve been out and seen it – 
people look at a gap and say “that’s wider than a lorry, what’s the 
problem?” Explaining the laws of physics as they relate to road 
camber and the geometry of wall/lorry/vehicle/road is tricky on 
social media. 

o We could try to arrange some filming to try to show people the issue, 
but it’s a big gamble to think that the owners of the problem vehicles 
would necessarily see the publicity around this (and realise that they 
are causing a problem). I think there could be more effective 
solutions. 

Page 77



   
 

o My comms advice (in addition to highlighting the problem on social 
media, as we already do) would be to resource some very targeted 
intervention. Assuming a lot of the problem is repeated in the same 
areas, probably with the same cars, I think letters or visits might be 
more likely to achieve the desired effect. I believe JB has already 
done this in some areas, and should be able to report to you on 
whether it has been effective. 

o We could also arrange flyers for crews to place on the cars. JB says 
we have done this in the past but been accused of damaging 
windscreen wipers. I’m assuming the numbers of such complaints 
were small, and I would still advocate for this targeted approach. 

o In terms or mentioning emergency vehicles, we can do that. It’s 
worth bearing in mind though that we’re then suggesting people 
should permanently park elsewhere (emergencies don’t just happen 
on bin day). They might just think that’s too much hassle and not 
bother at all. We might have more success if we’re only asking them 
to re-park on collection days. 

 

Page 78



Recycling service changes (April 2018)  

Communications plan 

Project aims 

The aims of the project are: 

 to introduce a new kerbside recycling service with five recyclates instead 

of three. 

 To increase the amount of recycling collected through this service. 

 

Communications aims 

The communications aims of the project are: 

 To make sure residents know the changes are coming 

 To ensure people understand the proposed changes 

 To raise awareness of the reasons for the need to increase recycling 

 To increase people’s knowledge of how and what to recycle 

 To continue to engender a sustained change in recycling practices after 

the service changes have been implemented 

Connected to this, we also aim to ensure: 

 The council’s reputation is preserved or enhanced 

 Media coverage of the project is fair and balanced 

Key messages 

The key messages of the project are: 

 We are improving your service to encompass plastic and cardboard 

 We want to help you to recycle more 

 Recycling makes financial sense for the council and for council tax payers 

Background 

We have the poorest recycling rate in the county. 

APPENDIX B 

Page 79



We also need to comply with a 2015 European directive to recycle five 

different materials at the kerbside. 

We continue to be challenged financially, therefore recycling collections must 

be efficient and where possible strive for commercial success. 

 

To this end we are: 

 Enhancing our kerbside service by including cardboard and plastic 

 Leasing an additional new vehicle and replacing the existing three with 

new ones. So we well have four vehicles capable of collecting up to six 

different materials 

 Employing one additional crew 

We know from previous waste changes that they can be disruptive for 

residents and can garner significant media attention. 

On this occasion the changes are positive and if planned and communicated 

correctly, with engagement with residents, we can make the communications 

around it a success. 

Reputational risks 

 Residents may be confused by the changes, especially if there are 

more/different containers. 

 Residents may not have room to store additional containers. 

 Residents may be confused or inconvenienced if their collection day 

changes. 

 Those already on assisted collections may encounter problems with the 

new system. 

 Residents may think this is a move towards less frequent household 

waste collections. 

 Residents may think this will be coupled with a reduction in bring sites 

(which it will.) 

 Residents may not use the service and therefore it will not be cost 

effective 

Page 80



 Council tax payers may be concerned at the cost of the receptacles, and 

the cost of replacing them when lost or broken. 

 

Communications Strategy 

We will ensure all stakeholders are kept up to date with the project and how it 

might/will affect them. 

Because this project has fewer negative possible outcomes, the 

communications will have less emphasis on consultation. 

The emphasis will be on sharing information, increasing knowledge, inspiring 

people to recycle, raising positive awareness and celebrating success. 

This is not to say there are no reputational risks (see above.) 

 

Communications tactics 

As this project affects around 95 per cent of our residents, we will use a wide 

range of communications channels to try to reach as many of them as possible. 

This would normally always include: 

 Local print media 

 Local broadcast media 

 News websites/feeds 

 Social media (using Facebook and Twitter) 

 Members’ Update (publication for councillors) 

 Copeland Chat (publication for staff) 

 eCopeland Matters (publication for residents) 

 Partner publications 

The tactics for achieving coverage in these areas will be: 

 A series of press releases at key stages of the project 

 Media calls and social media for promotional events 

Page 81



 Photocalls for the launch of the new service (including members in their 

wards) 

 Drafting articles for our publications 

 Schedule of social media posts 

In addition, we could use the following to increase positive engagement for 

this particular project: 

 Leaflets 

 Letters 

 Branding/messages on the sides of vehicles 

 Events (roadshows, market stalls, attendance at community events like 

carnivals etc) 

 Competitions  

 Schools engagement (eg councillor/officer visits, competitions) 

 Engagement through parish council meetings, locality meetings 

Some of these methods are dependent on budget 

 

There are three distinct phases to the project: 

 Phase One - Informing residents in the lead-up to the launch 

 Phase two - Launching the changes 

 Phase three - Encouraging people to continue to embrace the changes 

into the future 

 

 

Phase One (beginning October 17) 

 General recycling messages on social media 

 Release re scheme and roadshows (use ‘April’, don’t specify 9 yet.) 

 w/b oct 3o – release and subsequent interviews 

 Nov 1 – budget consult goes out including question on containers 

 Nov 21 – Exec – receptacles decided upon 

Page 82



 c Nov 27 – reminder release, emphasis on events 

 Dec 4 Sample vehicle arrives 

 Dec 7 – Roadshow. Vehicle at Whitehaven Market, officers there to 

explain, leaflets, examples of containers. Media invite. Couns invited. 

Portfolio holder attending one of the events. Mike S able to visit this one 

for a short time. Comms taking photos. Sarah McNeill attending, with 

activities and goodies 

 Dec 8 – Roadshow. Vehicle at Egremont Market, officers there to 

explain, leaflets, examples of containers. Media/couns invited. Comms 

taking photos. Sarah McNeill attending, with activities and goodies 

 Initial Leaflets (to include Xmas recycling advice and general message 

about the changes to come) 2,000. For roadshows and to place at 

distribution points. 

 Temporary vinyl on side of sample lorry (CC to design and commission) 

 Information on website as soon as provided by Waste 

 FEB – Advance comms re calendar on its way 

 FEB – Calendar being posted out. To include second set of leaflet with 

more detail about the scheme (34,000) IS THIS POSSIBLE? Asking Sue 

Stamper 

 MARCH 3 – Council tax bills out – to include a second (different) leaflet? 

 As soon as the containers are confirmed we will incorporate that info 

into this phase. 

Phase two (beginning shortly before April 9 launch) 

 Press releases, photocall and social media announcing the launch 

 Ongoing social media 

 Messages on the vehicles (CC) 

 Animation 

 Increased and updated website information 

 MARCH OR AS SOON AS AVAILABLE – Comms re box deliveries 

 Detailed features of the changes, including dates for when each area will 

have bags/boxes delivered. 

 Stickers/info on the bags/boxes (dependent on Janice’s budget.) 

 Tell us if you think you may need an assisted collection 

Page 83



 Tell people what the replacement policy is 

 Messages on sides of lorries – more detailed ie what/how to recycle 

 

Phase three (continuing after the launch period indefinitely) 

 Press releases detailing how well the implementation of the changes has 

gone 

 Continued social media reminding people, facts and figures, quirky ‘did 

you knows’ what you can recycle, mythbusting. 

 Case studies 

 Statistics 

 Highlighting particular areas that do well – data not available yet 

 Possibly – costs of sending waste to “landfill” 

 Tell us if you think you need an assisted collection – can we do this yet? 

 Remind people what the replacement policy is – check if we have one 

 Sep 24-28 Recycling Week – market stalls 

 Christmas comms from cyber Monday onwards – social media 

 

DATE UNKNOWN – Outcome of Beacon schools programme application 

Audience  

The audience for our communications is: 

 All households 

 Specific service users/affected groups (for example those without space 

for an extra container) 

 The media 

 Councillors, inc 

o Executive 

o Portfolio holder 

o OSC 

o Ward councillors 

 Parish councils 

 Copeland employees 

Page 84



Channels  

As listed above.  

Resources  

The budget for the comms around these changes is around £16,000. Budget 

holder JC. 

 

 

 

 

Micro-messages to include 

Alternatives are available for people with low mobility or no storage space. 

Non-recyclables will be put back into the box 

What can and can’t be recycled (see appendix X) 

What happens if your bin is lost or damaged?  

Can we still put extra stuff out at the side (unknown currently) 

 

Mythbusting 

Everything goes to landfill anyway 

 

 

 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



   
 

 

Copeland Disability Forum Recycling Questions 
 
Questions: 

 
1. What do you think of the boxes currently used for the kerbside 

recycling service? 
2. Do you think it would have a positive or negative impact should 

the boxes be switched out with bins? 
3. What would you like to see improved within the recycling service? 

 
 
Response: 
 
 
Thank you for consulting Copeland Disability Forum [CDF] on the Recycling 
Service at Copeland. 
 
Here are our Comments:- 
 
At the present time there is an assisted collection service for people with 
disabilities or older people, as well as people who may need temporary 
support.  
 
Each applicant for the assisted service is currently looked at on an individual 
basis, as one size doesn’t fit all, and an individual solution can be tailored so 
the person can participate fully in the Recycling Service. CDF are assuming that 
nothing will change with this assisted collection service and it will continue 
what ever recommendations the Task & Finish Group present.  
 
We are assuming that anyone on the assisted collection now will continue with 
their tailored service unless a  change would be beneficial the that individual.  
 
We believe that the assisted collection register will increase if the heavier one 
bin is used – especially for the older people ,who at the moment, manage the 
boxes but would struggle with the wheelie bins. We are sure CBC would be 
able to make suitable adjustments  for these individuals residents 
 
When the boxes were issued last time it was highlighted that people with sight 
loss could not identify the different boxes, this has not changed although a 

APPENDIX C 

Page 87



   
 

tactile identification was discussed. If the service goes to one mixed receptacle 
this would not matter, however, if it was a wheelie bin the same size as the 
black and brown bins identification would need to be taken into account again. 
 
At the moment on collection day the separate boxes can cause an obstruction 
on pavements and the littering for the boxes on a windy day can be a huge 
problem for residents. This has got worse with so many missed collection days, 
when full boxes are left on the public highway. We understand that Copeland 
Council ask for the missed bins to be taken back into the property but because 
of the uncertainty of missed collection revisit this rarely happens. If one 
wheelie bin was used for all recycling then this would reduce littering on the 
streets.  
 
For your 3rd bullet point about improvement of service: 
 
1] Re-introduce the printed calendar to be distributed to all Copeland 
Households. This has been a sad loss of service and although it is on the 
website it is not accessible for many residents. 
 
2] Ensure that collections are made on the day they should be, we understand 
there can be problems but week after week there are notifications on 
Facebook about missed collections, this has got a lot worse. We accept the 
pandemic may be partly to blame but vehicles off the road should not happen 
on a regular basis. This would greatly improve the service. 
 
One further comment CDF would like to make is, with the proposed 
Government Re-organisation will any proposed changes still happen ? 
 
Kind Regards 
 
Anne Bradshaw 
Chairman CDF 
 

Page 88



      
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Task and Finish Group Monitoring 

Task and Finish 

Group 

 

Chair of Task 
and Finish 
Group 

Progress  Next Step  Estimated 

Completion 

Date 

Recycling Review Cllr Jeanette 
Forster 

Membership 
confirmed. 

Final session completed. Report due for 
8th July 2021. 

21 June 
2021 
 
 

Health and Wellbeing 
North Copeland 

Cllr John Kane Membership 
confirmed. 

Scope Confirmed. Initial scope redrafted, 
interviewees and questions to be 
confirmed at next meeting. 

March 2022 

Health and Wellbeing 
South Copeland 

Cllr Fee Wilson Membership 
confirmed. 

Scope Confirmed. Initial scope redrafted, 
interviewees and questions to be 
confirmed at next meeting. 

March 2022 

Housing Cllr Mike 
Hawkins 

Membership 
confirmed. 

Group has agreed to delay moving 
forward until Q3 with main project. Small 
projects will continue in the meantime. 

TBC 

Social Media Policy 
Review 

TBC Membership TBC Confirm membership and set up initial 
meeting date with members 

TBC 

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 11



      
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Task and Finish 

Group 

 

Chair of Task 
and Finish 
Group 

Progress  Next Step  Estimated 

Completion 

Date 

Effective Digital 
Engagement 

TBC Membership 
Confirmed 

Initial meeting date with members to be 
set up. 

January 
2021 

 

 

 

Working Group Chair of 
Working 
Group 

Progress Next Step Estimated 
Completion 
Date 

Budget Monitoring TBC Membership 

confirmed 

Initial meeting set for Wednesday 30 

June 2021 

Ongoing 

P
age 90



Overview & Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 

Standing Items (Items will only appear on the agenda should there be an update) 

Item Corporate Plan Priority Purpose Lead Officer 

Executive Forward Plan 
 

All To identify any forthcoming 
items which the Committee 
may consider. 

Chief Executive 

Update from Cumbria 
Health Scrutiny Committee 

Healthy and Inclusive 
Communities 

To receive an update from 
the Cumbria Health and 
Scrutiny Committee from 
the nominated Copeland 
representative. 

Strategic Housing and Social 
Inclusion Manager 

Update from the Single 
Table Trade Union Group 
(STTUG) Representative 

A Commercial Council To receive an update from 
the Single Table Trade Union 
Group (STTUG) from the 
nominated Overview and 
Scrutiny representative.  

Human Resources Manager 

Housing A Place for Growth and 
Healthy and Inclusive 
Communities 

To receive any reports from 
the Strategic Housing and 
Social Inclusion Manager. 

Strategic Housing and Social 
Inclusion Manager 

Scrutiny Officer Updates All To update the Committee on 
the progress of Task and 
Finish Groups and the Work 
Programme 

Scrutiny Officer 

P
age 91



 

Agenda Items for Committee Meetings 

Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer 

15th April 
2021 
 

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 3 

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter three of 2020/21 

Director of Financial 
Resources 

 2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 3 

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter three of 
2020/21 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy (M.O.) 

 Monitoring Officers 
Report 

 Report on 2020/21 
Monitoring Officer issues 
and involvement 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy (M.O.) 

10th June 
2021 

Citizen’s Advice 
Presentation 

All Presentation to OSC from 
Citizen’s Advice regarding 
CBC grant 

 

Outside Bodies Annual 
Report 2021 

All Annual Outside Bodies 
Report for 2021 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy (M.O.) 

P
age 92



Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer 

 Annual Scrutiny Report 
2021  

All Annual Scrutiny Report for 
2021 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy (M.O.) 

8th July 2021 2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 4 
 

All 
 

Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter four of 
2020/21 
 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy (M.O.) 
 

 DFG Discretionary 
Payments Presentation 

All Presentation given 
regarding the DFG Pilot 

Strategic Housing 
Manager 

 Housing Complaints 
Guidance 

All Presentation on the 
Guidance created to help 
councillors regarding 
Housing Complaints 

Strategic Housing 
Manager 

 Recycling Task & Finish 
Group Report 

 Report to be presented by 
Group Chair to inform OSC 
on the findings. 

Scrutiny Officer 

5th August 
2021 

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 4 

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter four of 2020/21 

Director of Financial 
Resources 

P
age 93



Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer 

 2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 1 

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter one of 
2020/21 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy (M.O.) 

 Law Centre 
Presentation 

All Presentation to OSC from 
Law Centre regarding CBC 
grant 

 

 Budget Monitoring All Monitoring discussion 
regarding the 2020/21 
Budget 

Director of Financial 
Resources 

2nd 
September 
2021 

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 1 
 

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter one of 2020/21 
 

Director of Financial 
Resources 
 

 Town Funding Updates 
(Whitehaven, Cleator 
Moor, Egremont & 
Millom) 
 

All Updates to be given 
regarding the Future High 
Street Fund, Towns Deal & 
Borderlands Funding 
 

Chief Executive 
 

P
age 94



Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer 

 Street Lighting Report 
 

All 
 

Report to update OSC on 
the Street Lighting issue in 
Copeland 
 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy (M.O.) 
 

 Engagement with 
Schools Update 

All Update regarding the 
engagement agreed with 
schools 

 

7th October 
2021 

Tourism Presentation All Presentation to update OSC 
on Tourism in Copeland 

 

 Engagement with 
Town Councils Update 

All Update regarding the 
engagement agreed with 
town councils 

 

4th 
November 
2021 

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 2 

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter two of 2020/21 

Director of Financial 
Resources 

 2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 2 

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter two of 
2020/21 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy (M.O.) 

P
age 95



Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer 

 Budget Consultation All Budget Consultation 
Questions – discussion 

Director of Financial 
Resources 

 Budget Monitoring All Monitoring discussion 
regarding the 2020/21 
Budget 

Director of Financial 
Resources 

2nd 
December 
2021 

West Cumbria 
Community Safety 
Partnership Update 

All Update from the West 
Cumbria Community Safety 
Partnership as required as 
the Crime and Disorder 
Panel. 

Chief Executive 

 Yearly Review All A Review by Scrutiny Officer 
to highlight the work done 
throughout the year, work 
to do in 2022 and any 
improvements 

Scrutiny Officer 

18th January 
2022 
(Special) 

Draft Budget All The Mayor will present their 
Draft Budget proposals for 
the year 2022/2023 

Director of Financial 
Resources 

 

Items to be programmed into the OSC Work Programme 2021/22 

 

P
age 96


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 10 June 2021
	4 Executive Forward Plan
	7 Corporate Performance Report for Quarter 4 2020-21
	Appendix A - KPI Summary for Q4 of 2020-21 (OSC)
	Appendix B - Tonnage Waste Streams (OSC)

	8 Housing Complaints Guidance
	OSC Guidance re repairs  complaints

	9 DFG Discretionary Payments Presentation
	10 Recycling Task & Finish Group Report
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	11 Scrutiny Officer Updates
	2021-2022 Work Programme (July)


